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THE RMA: 10 YEARS ON

THE RMA: 10 YEARS ON
2000/01: Scottish Ministers
accept the recommendations
of the committee on Serious
Violent and Sexual Offenders
chaired by Lord MacLean.
2003/04: The Criminal Justice
(Scotland) Act 2003 establishes
the RMA.
2004/05: RMA implemented as
a pubic body. Board appointed
in 2004 led by the Convener
Mr Robert Winter. Staff
appointments completed Sept
2005 including appointment
of Chief Executive Professor
Roisin Hall.
2006/07: Scottish Ministers
establish the Risk Assessment
and Minimisation (Accreditation
Scheme) (Scotland) Order
2006. The scheme supports
the RMA in the accreditation
of assessors to prepare risk
assessment reports as directed
by the High Court.
2006/07: Level of Service
Case Management Inventory
(LSCMI) developed for use in
Scotland.
RMA commences validation
study of the use of risk
instrument Risk Matrix 2000 in
Scotland
2006/07: Following widespread
consultation with stakeholders,
the RMA publish Standards &
Guidelines for Risk Assessment.
2006/07: RMA hold conference
on Effective Risk Management.
2006/07: High Court issues
its first Order for Lifelong
Restriction sentence
2006/07: RMA publish the
Risk Assessment Tools
Evaluation Directory (RATED).
This document provides
information on the attributes
of a number of risk assessment
tools and associated
techniques and followed a
review and evaluation of risk
assessment tools.

2007/08: RMA support the
implementation of MultiAgency Public Protection
Arrangements in Scotland.
2007/08: RMA publish
Standards and Guidelines
for Risk Management. The
Standards & Guidelines for
Risk Management support the
risk management of offenders
subject to an OLR.
2008/09: RMA commences
project to evaluate the use of
STABLE 2007 and ACUTE 2007
(risk assessment tools for sex
offenders) in Scotland.
2008/09: RMA facilitate
LSCMI training for trainers,
to develop first cohort for
implementation. Delivered
by authors Don Andrews and
Steve Wormith.
June 2008: RMA holds its
third Annual Conference
in Glasgow on the theme
“Assessing and Managing
Violence Risk”. The event
attracts over 160 delegates
from across the UK.
2008/09: RMA commences
work on the development of
FRAME - Framework for Risk
Assessment and Management
Effectiveness. This
development was in response
to the Scottish Government
and agencies’ request for the
development of a screening
tool for the assessment of
violent risk, which research
had shown to be unavailable.
2009/10: RMA support
the development of the
Memorandum of Procedure on
restricted patients;
RMA host a knowledge
exchange seminar with the
Swedish Board of Forensic
Medicine;
Deliver LS/CMI training for
Criminal Justice Social Work
staff .

July 2011: RMA publish
the FRAME Policy Paper,
establishing fundamental
principles and standards to
facilitate a consistent approach
to risk assessment and
management.
2010-11: RMA host two
international conferences
to consider principles and
values in multi-agency risk
management and risk practice.
Attended by 265 delegates
from across the UK, Ireland,
Portugal and Sweden.
2011/12: Enhancing Effective
Practice In Community
Supervision (EEPICS)
is developed by the
RMA, commissioning the
development of structured
community supervision
techniques for a pilot
programme in Scotland.
2011/12: RMA support the
implementation of LSCMI
across Scotland. This included
conducting quality assurance
on the training provision to
1,000 practitioners, support
to the IT version of LSCMI and
train the trainer events.
2011/12: RMA host conference
on progressing understanding
of women’s offending, sharing
knowledge on the advances
made in evidence-based and
gender informed practice.
2012/13: RMA publish
an evaluation of the
implementation of the
SA07 risk assessment tool
in Scotland to inform
the adoption of quality
improvement measures
RMA maintain a cohort of
17 assessors accredited to
undertake Risk Assessment
Reports to assist the High
Court in its consideration of
whether an Order for Lifelong
Restriction should be imposed.

2012/13: National FRAME
Implementation Group
(FIG) established, with
representatives from the
Scottish Government,
ADSW, ACPOS, SPS, Forensic
Network and the Care
Inspectorate to take forward
the improvement initiatives of
FRAME.

Acronym

Full Term

Definition

RMP

Risk Management Plan

Required by law, for an offender subject to
an Order for Lifelong Restriction, approved
by the Risk Management Authority. A Risk
Management Plan is prepared by the lead
authority

SA07

Stable and Acute 2007

Risk Assessment Tool

2012/13: RMA seminars held
to support the improvement
initiatives of SA07. Sessions
were delivered on behalf of
the RMA by Professor Don
Grubin.
2013/14: The Court imposes
100th OLR sentence
2013/14: RMA contributes to
Council of Europe publication
on the management of serious
violent and sexual offenders
titled ‘Recommendations
concerning Dangerous
Offenders’, which was adopted
by the European Committee on
Crime Problems.
2013/14: RMA publish revised
Standards & Guidelines for Risk
Management.
2013/14: RMA introduce an
online version of the Risk
Assessment Tools Evaluation
Directory (RATED), an audit of
61 risk assessment tools.
2014/15: RMA contribute
to MAPPA guidance,
document set and multiagency risk management
plan format.
2014/15: Agreement made
with Scottish Government and
MHS to share data to inform
an international study of the
LS/CMI – the first jurisdiction
outwith Canada and North
America to undertake such
research.

Over the past 10 years, the RMA participated and contributed to national working groups and committees including National Advisory Board
on Offender Management, Centre for Youth and Criminal Justice Managing High Risk Champions Group, Forensic Network, Police Scotland
Offender Management Working Group, LSCMI Working Group, Effective Community Disposals, National Outcomes and Standards Advisory Group,
ACPOS Offender Management Working Groups, MAPPA Working Group, Training Services Provider Group and more. The RMA would like to thank
stakeholders for their support, collaboration and participation over the past ten years, and we look forward to working with our stakeholders in
the future to continue the progress made to date.
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Convener's Foreword
standards and guidelines that guide practitioners
in the preparation and implementation of
management plans. These being plans that are
tailored to the needs and characteristics of each
offender. Effective management, rehabilitation
and supervision not only reduce the level of
risk, but also give offenders the best chance of
returning to the community and leading crimefree lives thereafter.

Peter W Johnston
Convener

Welcome to the Risk Management
Authority’s Annual Report and
Accounts for 2014-15.
I am delighted to introduce this report, which
details our efforts and achievements over the
past twelve months, and I hope you enjoy
reading of the developments we have made this
year.
The Risk Management Authority (RMA) is a small,
cost effective NDPB1, which is part of the wider
criminal justice system in Scotland. We play an
important role in the drive to make Scotland a
safer place and reduce reoffending. Since being
established ten years ago, the RMA has gained
national and international recognition as a
centre of excellence and a source of expertise
and practical guidance in the assessment and
management of risk posed by serious offenders.
The RMA aims to facilitate the development
of consistent, comprehensive identification
and assessment of the many risks that such
offenders can present to the public, as well as
seek to support those bodies responsible for
the management of offenders in both custody
and the community. A key aspect of our work is
to provide access to well-considered, effective

4
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Building and maintaining close working
relationships with our partners is at the forefront
of our approach. This yields specific benefits,
with a good example of that this year being
the adoption of a consistent risk management
plan format for those who pose a risk of serious
harm. This significant development is the result
of extensive consultation to bring compatibility
across the Order for Lifelong Restriction, Criminal
Justice Social Work and MAPPA, and is a positive
example of what partnership working can
achieve.
The risk management plan is of great
importance, in that it identifies those responsible
for supervising the offender and their
rehabilitation; tracks the level of risk; and as
the offender progresses through the custodial
process, from secure settings to the community,
provides guidance to the Scottish Prison Service,
Parole Board and Criminal Justice Social Work
services. Therefore a consistent plan format and
approach provides a beneficial arrangement
for all.
The RMA is in a unique position, in that our
independent status enables us to provide
independent practical advice and guidance to a
full range of organisations and their practitioners,
and highlight the value of quality assurance and
implementation integrity to effective and ethical
risk practice. This touches on our support this
year to the delivery of the LS/CMI in Scotland and
the Moving Forward Making Changes programme
for sex offenders. The RMA has played a key role
in these initiatives and will continue to do so in
the years to come.

1

Non Departmental Public Body

The application of risk assessment tools and
research into their use is another area in which
the RMA takes a lead role. This year saw the
achievement of an exciting collaboration
between the RMA, Scottish Government and
MHS in Canada to share data and facilitate an
international study on the LS/CMI; this is a big
step in delivering risk practice with integrity and
we look forward to the learning points this study
by acknowledged experts will provide. Details of
all of this work and more are contained within
this report.
Underpinning all of these activities are our
individual members of staff and Board, who apply
their skills and knowledge with great enthusiasm;
their drive and professionalism are what make
the RMA the meaningful public body that it is. On
this note, 2014/15 marked the 10 year anniversary
of the RMA, giving us an opportunity to reflect
upon what we have achieved as a public body

and acknowlege those who have contributed
to those achievements. Much has happened
during that time, with successes including the
publication of standards and guidelines, the
development of FRAME and the risk assessment
tools directory RATED. For myself, one element
that features highly is the on-going support
and assistance provided by the RMA to our
stakeholders and practitioners - helping to deliver
services collaboratively, and building confidence
in new initiatives through quality assurance and
implementation integrity, is fundamental to
tackling risk and reducing reoffending.
To conclude, our work over the past year
as detailed in this report demonstrates a
commitment to our duties and a meaningful
contribution to our purpose to make Scotland
safer by setting the standard for risk practice, to
reduce reoffending and the harm that it causes.

Peter W Johnston
Convener
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Who we are and what we do
The RMA’s purpose is to make
Scotland safer by setting the standard
for risk practice to reduce reoffending
and the harm that it causes.
Our duties focus on protecting the public by
ensuring that robust and effective risk assessment
and risk management practices are in place to
reduce the risk of serious harm posed by violent
and sexual offenders.
This involves working with partners to promote
effectiveness ; drawing evidence from national
and international research and development
programmes to advance a shared framework of
effective and ethical risk practice.
The RMA was established in 2005 under the
Criminal Justice (Scotland) Act.
As well as the duties outlined above, the Act also
defines our specific responsibility to administer
and oversee the standard setting, accreditation
and approval processes that support the Order
for Lifelong Restriction (OLR). This sentence
pertains to individuals who pose the highest
levels of risk, defined as being convicted persons
who demonstrate that if at liberty they would
seriously endanger the lives, or physical or
psychological well-being of members of the
public at large.2

Where an OLR sentence has been imposed,
it constitutes imprisonment or detention for
an indeterminate period, and supervision in
the community on release. The RMA’s specific
role regarding the OLR and our other duties in
relation to the assessment and minimisation
of risk are outlined in full in our list of statutory
functions overleaf.
The RMA is sponsored by the Parole Unit of the
Justice Directorate and operates to an agreed
structure known as a Sponsorship Framework.
It sets out:
■■

the RMA’s overall aims, objectives and targets
in support of the Scottish Ministers’ wider
strategic aims;

■■

the rules and guidelines relevant to the
exercise of the RMA’s functions;

■■

the conditions under which any public funds
are paid to the RMA, and

■■

how the RMA is to be held to account for its
performance.

Since the
establishment
of the RMA in 2005,
our development and
achievements to date
have demonstrated both
integrity in our
adherence to the initial
policy intent, and
evolution.

The RMA's
purpose is to make
Scotland safer by
setting the standard
for risk practice to
reduce reoffending
and the harm that
it causes.

6
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Section 210E of the Criminal Justice (Scotland) Act 2003

RMA Statutory Functions
1. Policy and Research3

3. Risk Management Plans 5

In relation to the assessment and
minimisation of risk, the Risk Management
Authority is to:

The Risk Management Authority is to:

i.

ii.

ii.
iii.
iv.

Compile and keep under review information
about the provision of services in Scotland;
Compile and keep under review research and
development;
Promote effective practice;
Give such advice and make such
recommendations to the Scottish Ministers
as it considers appropriate.

In carrying out the above functions,
the Authority may:

i.
ii.

Carry out, commission or coordinate research
and publish the results of such research;
Undertake pilot schemes for the purposes of
developing and improving methods.

i.

iii.
iv.
v.

4. Accreditation, Education and Training6
The Risk Management Authority is to:

i.

2. Guidelines and Standards4
The Risk Management Authority is to:

i.
ii.

Prepare and issue guidelines as to the
assessment and minimisation of risk;
Set and publish standards according to
which measures taken in respect of the
assessment and minimisation of risk are to be
judged.

Specify and publish the form of Risk
Management Plans;
Consider for approval Risk Management
Plans;
May issue guidance as to the preparation,
implementation or review of any Risk
Management Plan.
May issue a direction as to the preparation
of a revised plan, or as to the implementation
of a plan.
Review annual reports on the
implementation of Risk Management Plans;

ii.
iii.

Administer any scheme of accreditation
in relation to a manner of assessing and
minimising risk;
Administer any scheme of accreditation in
relation to a person having functions as to
the assessment and minimisation of risk;
May provide or secure the provision of
education and training in relation to the
assessment and minimisation of risk for any
persons having functions in that regard.

5. Supplementary Functions7
The Risk Management Authority, in
connection with the exercise of its functions,
may:

i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

3 Part 1 section 4 of the Criminal Justice (Scotland) Act 2003
4 Part 1 section 5 of the Criminal Justice (Scotland) Act 2003
5 Part 1 section 6-9 of the Criminal Justice (Scotland) Act 2003
6	Part 1 section 4 & 11 of the Criminal Justice (Scotland) Act 2003, Risk
Assessment and Minimisation (Accreditation) Scheme (Scotland)
Order 2006
7 Part 1 section 12 & 13 of the Criminal Justice (Scotland) Act 2003

Acquire and dispose of land;
Enter into contracts;
Charge for goods and services;
Invest and borrow money with consent of
the Scottish Ministers
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Annual Report
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Chief Executive's Commentary
This model builds on the growing experience and
expertise within our staff group and is designed
to ensure that the majority of our staff resource
is devoted to supporting the development of
practice in preparing risk management plans. Our
work in the coming year will be to implement
this new model. The model advances all three
of our strategic aims in that: it will promote
effective practice in the management of risk of
serious harm; assure the quality of practice in the
risk assessment and management of offenders
subject to an Order for Lifelong Restriction; and
ensure our decisions are defensible and our
processes are administered with integrity.
Yvonne Gailey
Chief Executive and Accountable Officer

As Chief Executive and Accountable
Officer of the RMA I am pleased to
introduce this section of our annual
report, which details our activities
over the past twelve months against
our business plan objectives.
As always, our work was informed by our strategic
targets, which are all geared towards our purpose
to promote best practice in risk assessment and
risk management.
I would like to take this opportunity to highlight
some of the key themes of our work this year.
It is essential that we continually review and
improve our own practices and processes to
ensure that they are defensible and able to
withstand scrutiny. In addition to providing
detailed, consistent and conscientious
evaluations, our team of case workers engage
with practitioners in the field, and generate
ideas for improvement. This work led us to review
our working practices in relation to the approval
of risk management plans produced for offenders
subject to an OLR, and develop a revised model
that ensures they remain appropriately robust
but also become as efficient, effective and
sustainable as possible.

Another important development this year has
been the preparation and initial delivery of a
training course to provide fundamental skills
in risk practice. We are aware that this training
is eagerly sought in the field, and our current
efforts are to secure adequate funding to ensure
its delivery across the country. The effectiveness
of this training provision will be evaluated, and
it’s our desire to have sufficient resources to
provide post-training support and guidance to
practitioners.
This commitment to evaluation, quality assurance
and implementation integrity is a consistent
theme for us, as they are known to mark the
difference between success and failure; this is
further evident in a number of other current
initiatives we have contributed to this year.
We have told you in previous years of our
involvement in the implementation and on-going
support of the LS/CMI-based assessment and
management method. Last year we reported on
our involvement in the supported self-evaluation
of the early implementation that was undertaken
in collaboration with the Care Inspectorate, Local
Authorities and ADSW (now Social Work Scotland
(SWS). This year, once more in collaboration with
Local Authorities, SWS and Scottish Government’s
Justice Analytical Services, we have taken forward
essential data-linkage to allow for on-going
research into the effectiveness of this method.
The resulting data has been shared with Canadian
RMA Annual Report and Accounts 2014-2015
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researchers to inform an international study of
the LS/CMI. By so doing, Scotland is the first
jurisdiction out with Canada and North America
to undertake such research. Furthermore, we
are able to share that the preliminary findings
indicate that the method is being applied well
here in Scotland. This is very important news
that we will be disseminating widely in the
coming year, and it is a credit to the efforts and
perseverance of the various agencies who have
worked together to achieve this outcome.
On similar subject matter, this year has seen the
establishment of funding and dedicated posts to
support the community implementation of the
Moving Forward, Making Changes programme.
Through research projects, quality assurance
mechanisms, and clinical support, we will be
providing formative feedback and guidance on
the development, training and delivery of the
programme.
In this section you will also read of the work
that has been undertaken on governance,
communications, policies and procedures. Of
particular note, the business team has led an
appraisal of the RMA website and commissioned
the move to a new platform, due to become
operational in July 2015. This work will enhance
the utility of the website and increase our
capacity to disseminate information and engage
stakeholders.
These and many other achievements have
taken place due to the commitment of a valued
team of Board and staff members. We wish to
acknowledge the particular contribution of Board
member Dr Joanne Wood to the RMA, specifically

Yvonne Gailey
Chief Executive and Accountable Officer
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to the Research & Training, Accreditation and Risk
Management Plan Approval Committees over the
past four years. We entirely understand though
regret Jo’s decision not to seek a further period
of appointment, knowing the demands of her
professional career. We wish her well and thank
her for her highly valued contribution.
As reported in previous years, working within
a significantly reduced budget continues to
present many challenges, although we can report
that our efficiency targets for this period were
met. A significant aspect of our work this year has
been to review and revise some key processes
that support our statutory functions, to ensure
their continued effectiveness and efficiency.
Due to the nature of the Order for Lifelong
Restriction sentence, our workload naturally
and quite properly increases year on year;
however this contrasts with our budget which
has decreased steadily since 2009. Given that we
have sought to increase our resource allocation
to this area in recent years to meet this workload,
doing so within the parameters of a decreasing
budget has required delicate balancing.
However, against that challenging backdrop,
I hope this report provides insight into the
work we have undertaken over the past year
and demonstrates our commitment to setting
the standard for risk practice. We are pleased to
advise that the RMA has recorded meaningful
achievements and progress in 2014-15 and
trust that these developments provide a sound
platform for our future work in the forthcoming
years.

Business Plan: Contributions to National Outcomes and Priorities
PurPose

To focus government and public services on creating a more successful country, with opportunities for
all of Scotland to flourish, through increasing sustainable economic growth.

JusTICe
ouTCoMes

We experience low levels of crime

We experience low levels of fear,
alarm and distress

We have high levels of confidence
in justice institutions and
processes

Our institutions and processes
are effective and efficient

Reducing crime, particularly
violent and serious organised
crime

Reducing reoffending

Widening access to justice and
advancing law reform

Increasing public confidence and
reducing fear of crime

PrIorITIes

NATIoNAL
ouTCoMes

We live our lives safe from crime, disorder and danger

Our public services are high quality, continually improving,
efficient and responsive to local people’s need

PurPose

make scotland safer by setting the standard for risk practice to reduce reoffending and the harm that it causes

sTrATeGIC
sTrATeGIC
APProACh
APProACh
AIMs
AIMs
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the accreditation
process
and
evaluate performance
to ensure
assessors
evaluate
performance
to ensure
have regard
to our standards
andassessors
guidelines
have
regard with
to our
and guidelines
and comply
thestandards
code of conduct
and comply with the code of conduct
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Collate and analyse data on the application of
Collate
and
on thetoapplication
of
the order
foranalyse
lifelong data
restriction
inform policy
the
for lifelong restriction to inform policy
andorder
practice
and practice

Continually improve decision making
Continually
improve
making
processes to
ensuredecision
good governance,
processes
to ensure
good governance,
transparency
and fairness
transparency and fairness
Manage resources effectively and promote a
Manage
resources
and promote a
learning culture
in alleffectively
that we do
learning culture in all that we do
Develop our communication systems to
Develop
communication
to
enhance our
dissemination
of oursystems
work and
enhance
dissemination
of our work and
collaboration
with stakeholders
collaboration with stakeholders
Continually develop and enhance our
Continually
develop
and enhance
our
performance
management
systems
performance management systems

Objectives for 2014-15

Objectives for 2014-15

Learning & Development
FRAME policy
EEPICS
LS/CMI
MFMC

OLR policy and advice

Objectives for 2014-15
Procurement
Estate Management

Quality assurance

Human Resources

Information Technology

Communication

Application of the OLR

Governance
Information Management
Information Technology
Responding to the redesign of community
justice
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Performance against RMA
Business Plan Objectives
The RMA Corporate Plan 2013-16
contains a set of strategic aims that
have been developed in alignment
with Scottish Government National
Outcomes and the Justice Strategy
for Scotland. Our corporate objectives
and strategies are linked to these
Scottish Government strategies to
ensure that the RMA directly supports
the delivery of national policy
initiatives and ultimately contributes
to the national objective of making
Scotland safer and stronger.
The RMA Business Plan 2014-15 set out the
objectives that we identified would contribute
to the achievement of our strategic aims. The
Business Plan objectives were grouped according
to our three strategic aims: Strategic Aim 1
concerns risk assessment and management
practices; Aim 2 concerns the processes that
support the order for lifelong restriction
sentence; and Aim 3 relates to our internal
processes and governance arrangements.
In total the Business Plan contained 18 objectives
to facilitate the achievement of our strategic
aims. This section of the annual report describes
each of these strategic aims in turn and notes
our performance against the business plan
objectives.

Strategic Aim 1
The RMA will advance a shared framework of
effective and ethical risk assessment and risk
management practice
The RMA works closely with partner agencies
to develop and promote risk assessment and
management practices that are proportionate,
meaningful and legitimate. And by supporting
the practitioners who work within the field of
criminal justice, helping them to carry out their
work effectively and consistently, we contribute
to our wider purpose of reducing reoffending
and the harm that it causes.
Our Approach to achieving this aim involves
three elements: Inform policy decisions relating
to risk assessment and management with
learning from national and international research
and practice; Promote the implementation
of evidence based practices through the
development of learning, quality assurance and
evaluation resources; and Develop and publish
standards and guidelines.
Notable activity in 2014-15 supporting Strategic
Aim 1 included:
■■

Contributed to the development of MAPPA8
guidance and made submissions to the
consultation on extending MAPPA to other
categories of offender

KEY
FACTS

Achieved
the long term
objective of
establishing a
consistent format
of Risk Management
Plan for those who
pose a risk of
serious harm
within MAPPA
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Multi Agency Public Protection Arrangement

■■

■■

Established a research plan with Scottish
Government’s Justice Analytical Services and
MHS9 to conduct research on reconviction
data, which will facilitate a study of the
application of the LS/CMI10
Supported the implementation of Moving
Forward Making Changes (MFMC),
with quality assurance mechanisms
developed, clinical support established and
contributions made to the national working
group

■■

Contributed to the evaluation of the TARL
(Throughcare Assessment Release Licence)

■■

Supported and advised Police Scotland in
their delivery of training to over 100 offender
management officers

■■

Adopted a consistent format of Risk
Management Plan for those who pose a
risk of serious harm. This is in alignment
with the tiered approach to assessment
used by Criminal Justice Social Work (CJSW )
(within LS/CMI) and the Risk Management
Plan format for those subject to an Order for
Lifelong Restriction

9 Multi-Health Systems Inc.
10 Level of Service / Case Management Inventory

■■

Developed and delivered a training resource
to support CJSW practitioners undertake a
formulation and risk management plan for
those who pose a risk of serious harm

■■

Published the LS/CMI In Practice National
Report

■■

Supported the development and
implementation of Version 3 of the LS/CMI
system, to incorporate functionality that
facilitates a consistent Risk Management Plan
format for those subject to an OLR across
prison and community

■■

Working in partnership with stakeholders,
provided input to:
– Police Scotland Offender Management
Working Group
– Centre for Youth and Criminal Justice
Managing High Risk Champions Group
– Forensic Network

RMA Annual Report and Accounts 2014-2015
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THE LS/CMI
In 2014-15 the RMA published the LS/CMI in
Practice National Report. This report draws on data
provided by Criminal Justice Social Work Services
across Scotland up to September 2013. Its purpose
is to support the development of self-evaluation,
quality assurance measures and service planning.
This report also provides local authorities with a
comparison to the data provided within the local
LS/CMI in practice reports produced in 2013, which
are available via the RMA website.

Supervision intensity
The LS/CMI risk/needs level was compared with
the supervision intensity decision, to provide
an indication of where resources are likely to be
targeted and to what extent assessment matched
decisions on intervention i.e. an expectation that low
risk/need is supervised at low intensity, and very high
risk/need supervised at very high intensity.
The report showed that within each level of
supervision intensity, the percentage of cases
generally corresponded to the level of risk/need.

Supervision intensity level
Final LS/CMI
Risk/Need Category
Very Low
Low
Medium
High
Very High
No risk/need level recorded

Low
intensity
(19%)
(40%)
(26%)
(10%)
(3%)
(2%)

Within National Outcomes and Standards, the
level of supervision and intensity of contact can
further be determined by consideration of the
pattern, nature and seriousness of the offending.
Therefore, in some cases this will inform the level of
supervision intensity required, based on the risk of
serious harm posed or the complexity of the case.
The data provided in the LS/CM practice national
report indicates a number of encouraging
areas of practice. The report also includes 5
recommendations for the focus of local authorities
own self-evaluation and quality assurance. The RMA
Quality Assurance Lead will also be available to
provide support to the LS/CMI mentors identified in
31 of the 32 local authorities.
Moving Forward: Making Changes (MFMC)
The Moving Forward: Making Changes programme
(MF:MC) is a cognitive-behavioural programme used
for working with men who have committed sexual
offences. The MF: MC programme has replaced
the previous Community Sex Offender Groupwork
Programme (CSOGP) and the Scottish Prison Service
Good Lives Programme; and has been developed
with consideration of recent advances in research
and practice, as well as experiential learning gained
from delivering programmes throughout the prison
and criminal justice social work environments. The
MF:MC programme has been developed specifically
for use in both custody and community settings.
The MF:MC programme takes a more individualised
approach and is framed within a strengths-based
theoretical approach that views completion of
group work as something that will benefit the
individual; highlighting their role as the primary
agent of change. It adopts an open, rolling group
format, emphasising the therapeutic process;
individual formulation; and a focus on areas of need
most relevant to the individual and the risk they
14
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Medium
intensity
(2%)
(11%)
(39%)
(35%)
(10%)
(2%)

High
Intensity
(1%)
(4%)
(14%)
(43%)
(35%)
(2%)

Very High
intensity
0
(2%)
(1%)
(15%)
(78%)
(3%)

The RMA will continue to work with Social Work
Scotland and the Scottish Government to establish
development priorities for the LS/CMI system to
enhance the reporting facility to inform local service
planning.
The RMA would like to thank all Criminal Justice
Social Work Services for their on-going collaboration
in providing data from the
LS/CMI system and look
forward to providing
further analysis as
discussed at the
CJSW Standing
Committee.

FOCUS
ON

present. There is also
continual reinforcement
throughout the programme of
the need to involve the community, agencies,
support services and others to help the person feel
integrated; reflecting key concepts from desistance
literature.
During 2014-2015 the MF:MC programme was rolled
out incrementally across all 32 Scottish Criminal
Justice Social Work Services areas.
The RMA has been funded to provide both
quality assurance support and evaluation of the
programme in the community, and has worked in
partnership with all areas during implementation of
the programme, providing support throughout.
The RMA has also commissioned a clinical
psychology service provision to support
community-based staff delivering the MF:MC
programme. During 2014-2015, there have been
a total of 42 clinical support sessions delivered
in support of the programme to community-based
MF:MC delivery teams across Scotland.

Strategic Aim 2
The RMA will assure the quality of practice
in the risk assessment and management of
offenders subject to an Order for Lifelong
Restriction (OLR)
An essential function of the RMA is the
administration and oversight of the processes
that support the OLR sentence. Through our
efforts we want to continuously develop
and enhance our processes and provide
comprehensive support to stakeholders.
One element of this support will be our work
to produce updated standards, guidelines
and guidance for risk assessment and risk
management.
Our Approach to achieving this aim has five
elements: administer the accreditation process
and evaluate performance to ensure assessors
have regard to our standards and guidelines and
comply with the code of conduct; support and
guide lead authorities in the preparation of risk
management plans; ensure risk management
plans comply with legislation and have regard
to our standards and guidelines; evaluate the
implementation of approved risk management
plans ; and collate and analyse data on the
application of the order for lifelong restriction to
inform policy and practice.

deliverables and change. The benefits of this
are both in terms of improved efficiency and
more dynamic risk management plans. This
development will also enhance the utility
of the RMP to the Parole Board. The new
processes will be implemented in 2015-16.
■■

Undertook work to make the LS/CMI
electronic system consistent with the OLR
template.This enables further efficiencies
for the Lead Authorities that are able to use
this system, promotes consistency between
custody and community, and assists at the
point of transition to the community

■■

OLR case management system implemented
and operational

■■

Delivered a presentation to the Edinburgh
branch of SASO12 on the realities of the OLR

■■

Delivered a training input on the OLR to new
members of the Parole Board

■■

Supported HMP Glenochil during a change of
Case Managers

■■

Delivered a CPD event for Accredited
Assessors

Notable activity in 2014-15 supporting Strategic
Aim 2 included:
■■

■■

Engaged with key partners including the
Scottish Government, COPFS11 , Courts
Service, Police Scotland and accredited
assessors to consider OLR policy intent and
legislation
Developed new reporting processes for
risk management planning and annual
implementation, to streamline arrangements
by removing the need for two separate
reports. Reviewing the format of RMPs to
include a progress record will enable Lead
Authorities to more readily evidence/record

11 Crown Office Procurator Fiscal Service
12 Scottish Association for the Study of Offending

KEY
FACT
Developed
an Addendum to
RMA Standards
& Guidelines
for Risk
Management
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Strategic Aim 3
The RMA will ensure our decisions
are defensible and our processes are
administered with integrity
As a public body we want to promote open and
inclusive working practices within an approach
that is straightforward and accountable. In
practice, our work over the next three years
under this strategy will include evaluating how
we do things operationally; thinking about how
we manage and make best use of our resources,
and introducing new ways of engaging with
partners.

■■

Received approval for the RMA’s Records
Management Plan from the Keeper of the
Records

■■

Identified new secure digital method of
communication with Board members, which
will be implemented in 2015-16

■■

Conducted an appraisal of the RMA website
and commissioned the move to a new
platform, with an anticipated go live date of
July 2015

■■

Undertook an appraisal and cost analysis of
current corporate IT systems

Our Approach to achieving this aim involves
four elements: Continually improve decision
making processes to ensure good governance,
transparency and fairness; Manage resources
effectively and promote a learning culture in all
that we do; Develop our communication systems
to enhance dissemination of our work and
collaboration with stakeholders; and Continually
develop and enhance our performance
management systems.
Notable activity in 2014-15 supporting Strategic
Aim 3 included:
■■

■■

Established collaborative links with Scottish
Procurement to support procurement
processes
Reviewed estate management processes,
duties and functions, and developed desktop
instructions to aid business continuity

■■

Implemented staff counselling service

■■

Conducted a staff survey

■■

Developed an implementation plan for
auditor recommendations

■■

Implemented new complaints handling
procedure

16
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KEY
FACTS
Established
support
mechanisms for
complex procurement
projects
Records
Management Plan
approved

FOCU
ON

US
ON

RMA website
In 2014-15 we
undertook a review of
the content, design
and navigation of
the RMA website,
to appraise overall
effectiveness
and capability.
As a result, a new
website platform
was commissioned
to enhance our
communications
and support the
development of new
learning resources for
practitioners. The new
website is scheduled
to go live in July 2015.

FOCUS
ON

rma website
pages viewed

60,289

unique visitors
to the RMA
Website

8022

UK

85%
REST OF
THE world

15%

RMA Annual Report and Accounts 2014-2015

17

Key Performance Indicators
The RMA recognises the importance
of continually seeking ways to
improve how we deliver our
functions.

❝

To this end the RMA identified 9 key performance
indicators (KPIs) to help us measure and evaluate
how successful we are at managing our resources
and delivering services of a high standard.

I Have always found staff
to be very helpful and if they
do not know something they
will go the extra mile to find
it out or point you in the
right direction.

❞

Source: Stakeholder Survey 2014-15

Key Performance Indicators 2014-15

Result

1

Number of Accredited Assessors required to
service High Court demand

15-20

17

2

Quality Assurance Tests on sample of Risk
Assessment Reports

35%

62%

3

Risk Management Plans approved in accordance
with statutory timeframes

100%

100%

4

Staff evaluation of Annual Implementation
Reports

7 weeks

61%

5

RMA led Improvements to Practice – Stakeholder
Satisfaction Rating

75%

100%

6

RMA support provision to current practice –
Stakeholder Satisfaction Rating

75%

95%

7

Staffing Levels

15

18

8

Staff Absenteeism Rate

3.30%

2.26%

9

Financial Expenditure

£1,176,000

£1,041,000

The above KPIs were agreed under the RMA Corporate Plan 2013-16.
The Corporate Plan indicated a financial budget requirement of £1,176,000
The RMA has a core staff group of 14 permanent positions supplemented with staff
on fixed term contracts to support the LS/CMI, MFMC and OLR functions
18

Target
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Stakeholder Survey Results
RMA Support to current Practice:
stakeholder satisfaction rating:
The RMA issued a survey to stakeholders to
gather opinion on our existing work to support
risk assessment and risk management practice.
Stakeholders were asked for what purpose(s)
they had contacted the RMA (ticking all that
applied).
The results showed that:
70% of respondents contacted the RMA
for support / advice regarding the LS/CMI
29% of respondents contacted the RMA
for support / advice regarding OLR cases
12% of respondents contacted the RMA
for support / advice regarding MFMC
21% of respondents contacted the
RMA for support / advice regarding
risk practice, risk assessment tools or
research
Some respondents ticked multiple options.

Stakeholders were asked to comment on their
level of satisfaction with the support they
received. The results showed that:
95% said the advice / support received
was helpful
95% said their enquiries were resolved to
their satisfaction

❝

RMA-led Improvements to Practice:
stakeholder satisfaction rating:
In February 2015 the RMA piloted the first
Fundamentals of Risk Practice Course. The
purpose of this course is to equip practitioners
who work with cases where there is a concern
about risk of serious harm. This generally applies
to ‘serious’ violent and sexual offending, however
it can include other offences such as terrorism,
stalking, organised crime or drug related
offences; and are the cases in which MAPPA, OLR,
or LS/CMI risk of serious harm are likely to apply.
Feedback from course attendees
showed that:
1 00% said the material covered enhanced
their knowledge and understanding of risk
assessment and management practice
1 00% said the course equipped them to
undertake an assessment of risk of serious
harm and build a risk management plan
100% said the skills they learned were
relevant and easily transferable to their
workplace
1 00% said they would recommend this
training to others

❝

I think the questions/answer
for LS/CMI is very good this
should also be done for the
MFMC and risks as most
workers have the same or
roughly the same questions.

❞

My contact relates almost exclusively to LS/CMI and practice based or IT
issues are always dealt with without delay. I have also contacted staff to
discuss some practice issues in more depth and they have always been
accessible and willing to engage with both me individually and with my
whole team. This is always appreciated and well received.

❞
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The Order for Lifelong Restriction
Accreditation and Risk Management Plan
approval processes 2014-15

The Order for Lifelong Restriction
(OLR) became available to the High
Court in 2006. This sentence provides
for the lifelong management of highrisk violent and sexual offenders.
In cases where the High Court considers that
an offender may meet the set ‘risk criteria’13, it
will make a Risk Assessment Order (RAO). With
this order an Assessor accredited by the Risk
Management Authority is appointed to produce
a Risk Assessment Report. This report assists the
High Court in its consideration of whether or
not an Order for Lifelong Restriction should be
imposed.
The process map overleaf illustrates the key
elements of the OLR process: Risk Assessment
Report, Risk Management Plan and Annual
Implementation Report. The figures highlighted
for each component of the process indicate the
level of recorded activity for 2014-15.

The OLR process is supported by the Risk
Management Authority’s Accreditation
Committee. The primary function of the
Accreditation Committee is to consider RMA
accreditation of persons or manners of assessing
and minimising risk and to assess whether they
meet the RMA standard for accreditation. The
Committee’s specific powers, set out in full in the
Risk Assessment and Minimisation (Accreditation
Scheme) (Scotland) Order 2006, include:
■■

To decide whether an applicant has met the
required competencies and standards to
become an RMA risk assessor and to award
accredited status if they have;

■■

To provide appropriate direction to RMA
staff on the handling of an application for
accreditation at all stages prior to a final
decision on whether or not to accredit a
person;

■■

To decide whether a manner has met
the required criteria to become an RMA
accredited manner and to award accredited
status if it has;

■■

Oversee the development and review of any
RMA Standards & Guidelines with regards
to risk assessment and management, which
Accredited Assessors must conform to.

Total
number
of OLRs

132

KEY
FACTS

6

assessor
accreditation
applications
approved
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13 Section 210E of the Criminal Justice (Scotland) Act 2003 Part 1

OLR Process Flowchart
15

Risk Assessment
Report

Risk Assessment Order (RAO)
instructed by the High Court

High Court appoint assessor
accredited by the RMA to undertake
a Risk Assessment Report (RAR)

RAR produced (in accordance with
RMA Standards & Guidelines) by
accredited assessor and submitted
to the High Court

RAOs not concluded
in previous year carried
forward

RAOs not concluded
carried forward

Risk Management Plan
3
NO

Order for Lifelong Restriction
sentence imposed by the High Court?

22
YES

Lead Authority produce Risk
Management Plan (RMP) for offender
(in accordance with RMA
Standards & Guidelines)

38
RMP submitted for RMA approval

17
NO

RMP approved by the RMA?
17

Guidance provided by the RMA
and revised RMP submitted
by the lead Authority

38
YES

RMP approved by the RMA?

Annual Implementation Report
66
Annual Implementation Reports
(AIR) reviewed by RMA

80
Annual Implementation Reports
(AIR) submitted by Lead Authority
to RMA for review
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Accreditation as a risk assessor is based on
a competency framework in order to apply
consistent standards of assessment across
different professions. The competency framework
underpins the application process, which
balances the required rigour with recognition
that candidates for accreditation will invariably
be experienced practitioners with a wide range of
relevant skills. It should be noted that accredited
assessors are not employed by the RMA: they are
commissioned directly by the High Court.

complete the Risk Assessment Report (although
this can be extended). As such, RAOs instructed
near the financial year end are carried forward,
to be concluded in the
subsequent financial year.

KEY
FACTS

15

The RMA Accreditation Committee processed 6
applications for accreditation during 2014-15.
All 6 applications were approved, therefore the
cohort of assessors accredited to undertake Risk
Assessment Reports on behalf of the High Court
remains unchanged at 17.

RISK ASSESSMENT
ORDERS (RAOs)
INSTRUCTED BY THE
HIGH COURT

It should be noted that once an RAO has been
instructed, the Accredited Assessor has 76 days to
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Fig 1. Number of Risk Assessment Orders issued by the court each year

KEY
FACT
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ORDERS FOR
LIFELONG RESTRICTION
IMPOSED BY THE
HIGH COURT
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Fig 2. Number of offenders sentenced to an Order for Lifelong Restriction each year

When the Order for Lifelong Restriction (OLR)
legislation was introduced, it was estimated
that by largely replacing the discretionary life
sentence, approximately 15 OLRs would be
imposed each year. The number of OLRs recorded
for 2014-15 is higher than that initial estimate at
22. This is an increase over the figures recorded
for the previous four years, where the number of
OLRs imposed ranged between 15 and 18. The
highest number of OLR sentences passed in any
one year was 26 in 2009-10.
Since the inception of the legislation to 31 March
2015, the 189 Risk Assessment Orders made by
the High Court have resulted in a total of 140
offenders being sentenced to an OLR. There are
currently 132 active cases.
In terms of offences that led to an OLR sentence
being made, the circumstances in which the
High Court in Scotland may consider making a
Risk Assessment Order in respect of a convicted
person are broad. Other than murder (where

there is a mandatory life sentence) there are
no exclusions to the offences that may be
considered.
Three specific categories are mentioned:
■■
■■
■■

Sexual offences;
Violent offences; and
Offences which endanger life

The chart below outlines the offence types for
OLR cases to date. Given the wide range of index
offences, these were categorised to provide a
digestible account of the distribution of offence
types. Violent offences included any assault
charge and ranged up to attempted murder. The
sexual group were offences that indicated only
sexual offending and the sexual / violent group
included both an indication of a sexual crime
with assault in the charge. The ‘other’ category
includes offences such as; fire-raising; conspiracy
and possession of a firearm etc. that is, no
indication of violence or sexual offending issues.

Proportions of OLR offence types

36% sexual \ violent

11% other

15% violent

37% sexual
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Where offences contained both a violent and
a sexual element, the punishment part of the
sentence tended to attract a longer period

than was the case for violent or sexual offences
separately.

Average Punishment
Part (years)

Range (years)

Violent

4.6

2 to 9

Sexual

5.0

1 to 11

Sexual / Violent

6.4

2 to 12

Other

3.7

1 to 10

Type of index offence

A unique element of the OLR sentence is that
detention can continue beyond an offender’s
expired punishment part. The Parole Board (sitting
as a tribunal) is responsible for determining
whether or not an OLR offender requires to
continue to be confined for the protection of
the public. The tribunal directs an individual’s
release, on licence, from custody only when it is
satisfied that the risk is acceptable. On release an
individual would continue to be subject to a Risk
Management Plan and Annual Implementation
Report. Should an individual breach conditions
of their release or give cause for concern whilst
on licence, they would be liable to be recalled to
custody.
Graphs outlining punishment parts according
to grouped index offences are provided at
Appendix B

must collaborate in the preparation of the Risk
Management Plan. The agency responsible for
writing the Risk Management Plan and submitting
it to the RMA is known as the lead authority this lead authority will change depending on
the position of the offender (e.g. whether in
prison, hospital, or released on licence in the
community). The Risk Management Plan must
also provide an assessment of the offender’s risk,
describe the measures to be taken to minimise
that risk and how these measures will be coordinated.
The RMA facilitates this process through its
Committee structure. The primary function of the
Risk Management Plan Approval Committee is to
approve Risk Management Plans submitted by
Lead Authorities.
This Committee also has functions to:

The Criminal Justice (Scotland) Act 2003 requires
RMA approval of a Risk Management Plan for
each offender sentenced to an Order for Lifelong
Restriction, within nine months of the date of
sentence.
Thereafter cases are reviewed annually with
implementation reports submitted to the RMA.
The purpose of the Risk Management Plan is
to ensure that risk is properly managed on a
multi-disciplinary basis. As such, agencies with
statutory responsibilities for the offender such
as the Scottish Prison Service, local authority
social work services and health services providers,
24
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■■

Review the implementation of approved Risk
Management Plans

■■

Oversee the Risk Management Plan process;
and to

■■

Set and amend policy in the area of Risk
Management Plans

66

ANNUAL
IMPLEMENTATION
REPORTS
REVIEWED

KEY
FACTS

38

RISK MANAGEMENT
PLANS APPROVED

(17 PLANS WERE APPROVED
AFTER GUIDANCE FROM THE
RMA, RESULTING IN REVISED
PLANS BEING SUBMITTED
FOR FURTHER
CONSIDERATION

In this reporting year, 38 Risk Management Plans
(RMP) were approved and a total of 66 Annual
Implementation Reports (AIR) were reviewed
by the RMA. This year saw 16 initial RMPs, 22
amended RMPs and 17 revised RMPs submitted

to the Committee for approval, amended plans
being where an approved RMP was already
in place that required amending following a
significant change in the circumstances of the
offender.
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Annual Implementation Reports reviewed by the RMA
Risk Management Plans approved by the RMA

Fig 4. Risk Management Plan Approval Committee Case Review
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Board and Senior Staff
The Board is responsible for setting
the strategic direction of the RMA and,
together with the RMA Chief Executive,
ensures that Best Value is achieved
through efficient and effective use of
resources and personnel.
In order to do this, the Board established six
Committees to ensure informed decision and
policy making.
The Committees are:
Accreditation Committee – to take decisions
on the accreditation of assessors and manners of
assessment
Appeals Committee – to consider and decide
any appeals lodged with the RMA against a
decision by the Accreditation Committee
Audit Committee – to support the Accountable
Officer responsible for issues of risk, control and
governance and associated assurance through a
process of constructive challenge
Remuneration Committee – to consider and
make recommendations to the Board and
Scottish Ministers on pay policy and the annual
pay award for the Chief Executive and staff
Research & Training Committee – to provide
the strategic direction for the RMA’s research and
training programme. The Scottish Government
is represented on the Research and Training
Committee through a nominee from the Effective
Practice Unit within the Justice Department.
Risk Management Plan Approval Committee –
to take decisions and approve Risk Management
Plans submitted by lead authorities
Appointments to the Board of the Risk
Management Authority are made by the Scottish
Ministers. There were no changes to the Board to
report this year.

26
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The RMA Board members are:
Convener:

Mr Peter Johnston

Board members:

Professor Hazel Kemshall
Dr Anne MacDonald
Dr Joanne Wood
Mr Emcee Chekwas
Mr Stephen Swan
Mr Chris Hawkes
Ms Elizabeth Carmichael

The Register of Members’ interests is available on
the RMA’s website www.rmascotland.gov.uk
or direct from the RMA via telephone on
0141 278 4478 or by e-mail at
info@rmascotland.gsi.gov.uk.
Yvonne Gailey was appointed Chief Executive
on 27th May 2009 and is the Accountable
Officer for the RMA. Ms Gailey took up the
Chief Executive post following three years as
Director of Operations and Development within
the RMA. This followed five years in training
and consultancy, involved in introducing risk
assessment tools and effective practice initiatives
in Scotland’s youth and criminal justice sectors. Ms
Gailey has a social work background, working from
1979 to 2001 in Renfrewshire Council as a social
work practitioner and criminal justice manager,
and throughout her career has demonstrated a
commitment to evidence-based practice.
Paul Keoghan joined the RMA on 26 January
2009 as Director of Business Performance. In
supporting the governance arrangements of the
RMA, Mr Keoghan oversees all of the Authority’s
corporate services including finance, policy,
communications, IT, audit and administration
and ensures the RMA adheres to the Best Value
and financial procedures laid out by the Scottish
Government.

The RMA Board

Staff Resource
Position
Recruitment Date
Quality Assurance Lead
(2 year fixed term)
06/05/2014
Web Editor
(fixed term to 31/03/2015)
10/11/2014
OLR Case Worker (1 year fixed term) 11/11/2014
OLR Case Worker
11/11/2014
Research Assistant (1 year fixed term) 15/12/2014
Quality Assurance Assistant
(1 year fixed term)
05/01/2015

The RMA has a small structure of fourteen
permanent employees and places great emphasis
on the continued development of those staff
members to support the achievement of our
corporate and business plan objectives. We
operate our pay and performance systems
using the Hay methodology and reward
staff contributions through remuneration
arrangements as dictated by Scottish
Government Pay Policy guidance.
The RMA also employed a further 6 staff on short
term contracts to support RMA contributions to
the LS/CMI and Moving Forward Making Changes
programme, OLR case management, and the
development of the RMA website.

PositionDate left
OLR Case Worker
31/10/2014
Finance Administrator
04/03/2015

Chief Executive

Position
Recruitment Date
The RMA has a small structure of fourteen
permanent employees and places great emphasis Quality Assurance Lead
Director Business
(2 year
fixed term)
06/05/2014
on the continued development of those staff
Performance
Web Editor
members to support the achievement of our
(fixed term to 31/03/2015)
10/11/2014
corporate and business plan objectives. We
OLR Case Worker (1 year fixed term) 11/11/2014
operate our pay and performance systems
Head of Development
Head of Delivery
OLR Case Worker
11/11/2014
using the Hay methodology and reward
ResearchSenior
Assistant
staff contributions through remuneration
OLR (1 year fixed term) 15/12/2014
Research Lead
Learning
Quality Assurance
arrangements
as&dictated by Scottish
Case WorkerAssistant Governance &
Development Lead
Communications
(1 year fixed term)
05/01/2015
Government Pay Policy guidance.
Administrator
Researcher
The RMA also employed a further 6 staff on short
OLR Case
Worker
Quality
Assurance
Lead
PositionDate
left
term
contracts
to support
RMA contributions to
OLR Case
Research
Finance Administrator
WorkerOLR Case Worker
31/10/2014
the LS/CMI and Moving ForwardAssistant
Making Changes
OLR Case
Finance Administrator
04/03/2015
programme, OLR case management, and the
Worker
Quality Assurance
development
of theLead
RMA website.
QA Assistant
Administration Assistant
Training & Events
Co-ordinator

The RMA seeks to encourage and support the
potential of all staff members and invest in their
continued professional development through
the identification of training opportunities and
attendance at relevant seminars and conferences.

Staff are also subject to a comprehensive system
of performance review and are encouraged to
improve their skills and expertise on an on-going
basis as part of their work for the RMA.
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13

RMA STAFF ATTENDED
20 TRAINING
COURSES
DURING THE
YEAR

KEY
FACTS

6

RMA STAFF ATTENDED
14 RELEVANT
CONFERENCES/
SEMINARS

Courses attended by staff during 2014-15
included training on the treatment of sexual
offenders, HCR2014, Prince2, PCL-R15 and RSVP16.

Relevant conferences and seminars attended
included IATSO, SOFMH17, NOTA18, Clinical Risk
Forum, and sexual homicide.

Freedom of Information
The Freedom of Information (Scotland)
Act 2002 (FOISA) provides individuals
with a right of access to all recorded
information held by Scotland’s public
authorities.

KEY
FACT

17

Anyone can use this right, and information can
only be withheld where FOISA expressly permits it.
Section 23 of FOISA also requires that all Scottish
public authorities maintain a publication scheme.
The RMA’s publication scheme sets out the types
of information that we routinely make available.

RESPONSES
PROVIDED TO FREEDOM
OF INFORMATION
REQUESTS RECEIVED
BY THE RMA

In 2014-15 the RMA received 16 requests under
FOISA and carried forward 1 from 2013-14.
Under the legislative guidelines for FOISA, public
authorities have 20 working days to provide their
response. All 17 requests were responded to
within the legislative guidelines of 20 working
days.
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14
15
16
17
18

Historical Clinical Risk Management-20
Psychopathy Checklist revised
Risk for Sexual Violence Protocol
School of Forensic Mental Health
National Organisation for the Treatment of Sexual Abusers

Future Strategic Objectives
The RMA Business Plan for 201516 outlines the objectives for the
forthcoming year that will build upon
our achievements to date and facilitate
the delivery of our strategic aims.
2015-16 represents the final element of our
current three year Corporate Plan and as such,
the targets for this year have been developed to
facilitate the successful conclusion of that plan’s
corporate strategies.
A key element of our work over the next twelve
months will be our focus on active and alert
risk practice. Our activities will include the
implementation of enhanced processes associated
with the Order for Lifelong Restriction, with
increased support to Lead Authorities and case
managers; the delivery of training courses and
events that support best practice; and meaningful
contributions to national programmes through
research and quality assurance activities. Further
work will also be undertaken to increase our
engagement with stakeholders and practitioners,
including the development of communication
models that make best use of digital media.
The Business Plan illustrates our focus for 2015-16
and demonstrates our contributions to making
Scotland safer by setting the standard for risk
practice to reduce reoffending and the harm that
it causes.

■■

Undertake training delivery of EEPICS19

■■

Conduct an analysis of the OLR profile data

■■

Conduct an evaluation of the MFMC
implementation process

■■

Utilise visor data and produce a report on the
utility of SA0720

■■

Undertake a comparison study of the risk of
serious harm profiles

■■

Publish revised Standards & Guidelines for
Risk Assessment

■■

Review additional capacity of quality
assurance support to LS/CMI stakeholders
and refocus this provision in terms of active
and alert

■■

Identify MFMC quality assurance measures
as a result of clinical support and learning
evaluations

Strategic Aim 2
The RMA will assure the quality of practice
in the risk assessment and management of
offenders subject to an Order for Lifelong
Restriction (OLR)
Key activities we will undertake to support this
aim in 2015-16 include:
■■

Continue discussion with key partners to
review primary legislation matters. For
example, application of OLR to young people;
risk criteria; desirability of review mechanism

■■

Review quality assurance system for RMPs
and annual reporting on implementation

■■

Review the accreditation process,
competencies and criteria

■■

Enhance support provided to Lead
Authorities / Case Managers in the
preparation and submission of RMPs

A copy is available to download from our website
at www.rmascotland.gov.uk
Activities for 2014-15
Strategic Aim 1
The RMA will advance a shared framework of
effective and ethical risk assessment and risk
management practice
Key activities we will undertake to support this
aim in 2015-16 include:
■■

Deliver series of Risk Practice courses to CJSW
practitioners

19	Enhancing Effective Practice in Community Supervision sychopathy
Checklist revised
20 Stable and Acute 2007
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Strategic Aim 3
The RMA will ensure our decisions
are defensible and our processes are
administered with integrity

■■

Issue e-newsletters to improve stakeholder
knowledge of risk practice through regular
updates of statistical data

■■

Review corporate reporting to Board and
Committees

■■

Review Records Management Policy and
support procedures, and progress paperless
office policy through implementation and
training of staff on eRDM21

Key activities we will undertake to support this
aim in 2015-16 include:
■■

Deliver a conference on “Managing Violence
in the Community” to inform and improve
support to practitioners

■■

Improve Risk Practice by hosting seminars for
Criminal Justice Social Work and OLR Case
Managers

30
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Strategic Report
Introduction
The Risk Management Authority was established
in 2005 under the Criminal Justice (Scotland) Act
2003, for the purpose of ensuring the effective
assessment and minimisation of risk. Our functions
include the communication of best practice,
drawing evidence from national and international
research and development programmes to
improve risk assessment and risk management
approaches in Scotland.
The Act also outlines our specific responsibility
to administer and oversee the standard setting,
accreditation and approval processes that support
the Order for Lifelong Restriction (OLR). This
sentence pertains to individuals who pose the
highest levels of risk, defined as being convicted
persons who demonstrate that if at liberty would
seriously endanger the lives, or physical or
psychological well-being of members of the public
at large. Where an Order for Lifelong Restriction
sentence has been imposed, it constitutes
imprisonment or detention for an indeterminate
period, and supervision in the community on
release. The Risk Management Authority’s specific
role regarding the OLR and our other duties in
relation to the assessment and minimisation of risk
are outlined in full in our list of statutory functions
contained on Page 7 of the Annual Report.
Strategy and Business Model
The Risk Management Authority’s Corporate Plan
2013-16 outlines the strategies and targets, which
were developed in consideration of:
	responsibilities under the Criminal Justice
(Scotland) Act 2003;
	intentions to build upon the RMA’s prior
achievements; and
	contributions to Scottish Government
strategies.
The Board define the Purpose of the Risk
Management Authority is to:
make Scotland safer by setting the standard for risk
practice to reduce reoffending and the harm that it
causes
The Corporate Plan outlines the Purpose will be
delivered through three Strategic Aims - Aim
1 concerns risk assessment and management
practices; Aim 2 concerns the processes that
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support the Order for Lifelong Restriction
sentence; and Aim 3 relates to our internal
processes and governance arrangements.
The Strategic Aims are further supported by an
Approach which specifies the individual tasks the
Risk Management Authority will undertake over
the next three years..
The Risk Management Authority also develops
an Annual Business Plan which will contain
comprehensive annual objectives for each
approach.
Financial results
The annual accounts report the results of the Risk
Management Authority for the year 1 April 2014
to 31 March 2015. They have been prepared in
accordance with the Accounts Direction given by
the Scottish Ministers in accordance with Section
12 (3) of the Criminal Justice (Scotland) Act 2003.
The Accountable Officer authorised these financial
statements for issue on 19 June 2015.
The Risk Management Authority is financed
through Grant-in-Aid from the Scottish
Government Criminal Justice Directorate. The
Scottish Ministers are answerable to the Scottish
Parliament for the Risk Management Authority and
are responsible for making financial provision to
meet the Risk Management Authority’s needs.
The financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2015 are set out in pages 46-47. The Notes
to the annual accounts on pages 48-53 form part
of the annual accounts.
For the year 2014-15 the Risk Management
Authority total expenditure budget amounted
to £1,041,000 which was funded by Scottish
Government in the form of grant-in-aid.

Funding Drawdown Outturn
£'000

£'000

£'000

Resource DEL

970

970

911

MFMC

220

150

130

1,190

1, 120

1,041

TOTALS

All expenditure incurred during 2014-15 was
within agreed budgetary provision.

Risks & Uncertainties
The Risk Management Authority is committed to
the development and maintenance of an effective
culture of risk management whereby appropriate
procedures are embedded within the organisation
which focus on the achievement of organisational
aims and objectives.
The risk register maintained by the Risk
Management Authority is regularly reviewed. As at
31 March 2015 the risk register contained 13 risk
factors which were classified as 10 medium risks
and 3 low risks.
There are currently 132 persons subject to an OLR:
based on the expected and actual imposition of
this order, the RMA anticipates that over the next
4 years this number is likely to exceed 200. The
key risk facing the Risk Management Authority
is ensuring the provision of adequate resources
to meet the demands of the natural growth in
related case work. Since 2009, in the context of a
reducing budget, the RMA has adjusted working
practices and transferred resources within the
team to support this. However, lack of additional
resources will present significant risks to the
RMA’s capacity to meet its statutory functions
to promote effective practice, and deliver
continued development and implementation of
quality assurance processes required to support
the assessment and management of the most
serious offenders. Scottish Government has
been apprised of this situation most recently on
31 March 2014 in a request for an increase to
grant in aid for 2014-15. A further business case
presenting the five-year projection and resource
requirements is being prepared.

Changes in Non-Current Assets
The Risk Management Authority acquired £20,817
in non-current assets during the year. The
acquisition related primarily to ICT costs relating to
the relocation of the Risk Management Authority
to new premises. The RMA had disposal of noncurrent assets amounting to £38,458 which related
to assets associated with the old premises.
Post Year-End Activities
Since the end of this reporting year there are no
significant post year-end activities to report.

Environmental Issues
The Risk Management Authority operates
environmental policies and procedures, which
include recycling and choosing sustainable
products. The Risk Management Authority also
provides a cycle to work scheme for all staff and
promote car sharing for attendance at events and
meetings. The RMA aims to communicate through
electronic media, making better use of technology
to deliver information in a cost effective and
environmentally friendly manner.
Social, Community and Human Rights Issues
The Risk Management Authority has a policy to
support staff volunteering and voluntary activities
and also has an Equal Opportunities Policy and
Procedure. Wellbeing posters and newsletters are
issued to staff via the Risk Management Authority’s
health provider. The Risk Management Authority
also has a set of equality outcomes and published
an equality mainstreaming report in April 2013.
A followup report due is due to be submitted in
2015-16.
Performance Indicators
The Risk Management Authority developed
9 KPIs to measure and evaluate performance
against strategic objectives. Details of the Risk
Management Authority’s performance against the
KPIs can be found on page 18 of this report.
The Risk Management Authority also produces
regular statistical information to monitor the
workload of the OLR process. Details of of the
information can be found on pages 20 –25 of this
report.
Staff Gender Analysis
As of 31/03/2015 the gender breakdown of the
RMA is represented as follows:

Male

Female

Board

4

4

Senior Executive
Staff

1

1

Staff

7

9

12

14

TOTALS
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Future Performance
A key element of the work of the Risk
Management Authority concerns the governance
of processes associated with the assessment and
management of risk of offenders considered for,
or subject to, an Order for Lifelong Restriction
(OLR). These individuals pose the greatest risk of
serious harm to the public, hence it is paramount
that the Risk Management Authority ensures it has
the appropriate resources and capacity to manage
these processes.
Other than murder (where there is a mandatory
life sentence) there are no exclusions to the
offences that may be considered, however the
Criminal Justice (Scotland) Act 2003 mentions
three specific categories, these being sexual
offences; violent offences; and offences which
endanger life.
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There are currently 132 offenders subject to
an OLR in Scotland and the Risk Management
Authority forecasts that over the next four
years the number of offenders subject to an
OLR will increase to circa 215. This progessive
increase in numbers along with the increase in
case complexity presents the Risk Management
Authority with resource and process challenges
that will require careful planning.

YVONNE GAILEY
Chief Executive and Accountable Officer
19/06/2015

Director's Report
Board Members
The Board is responsible for setting the strategic
direction of the Risk Management Authority and,
together with the Chief Executive, ensures that Best
Value is achieved through efficient and effective
use of resources and personnel. Membership of the
Board during 2014-15 included:
Convener:

Mr Peter Johnston

Board members:

Professor Hazel Kemshall
Dr Anne MacDonald
Dr Joanne Wood
Mr Emcee Chekwas
Mr Stephen Swan
Mr Chris Hawkes
Ms Elizabeth Carmichael

The Board established six Committees to ensure
informed decision and policy making. The
established Committee include:
Accreditation Committee – to take decisions
on the accreditation of assessors and manners of
assessment
Appeals Committee – to consider and decide
any appeals lodged with the RMA against a
decision by the Accreditation Committee
Audit Committee – to support the Accountable
Officer responsible for issues of risk, control and
governance and associated assurance through a
process of constructive challenge
Remuneration Committee – to consider and
make recommendations to the Board and
Scottish Ministers on pay policy and the annual
pay award for the Chief Executive and staff
Research & Training Committee – to provide
the strategic direction for the RMA’s research and
training programme
Risk Management Plan Approval Committee –
to take decisions and approve Risk Management
Plans submitted by lead authorities
Executive Staff
To support the Board the Risk Management
Authority has appointed an executive
management team which comprises of the
Chief Executive and the Director of Business
Performance.

Ms Yvonne Gailey was appointed Chief Executive on
27 May 2009 and is the Accountable Officer for the
RMA. Responsibilities as Accountable Officer include
responsibility for the propriety and regularity of the
public finances for which the Accountable Officer is
answerable, for the keeping of proper records and
for safeguarding the Risk Management Authority’s
assets, are set out in the Framework Document
with the Scottish Government and the Statement
of Accountable Officer's Responsibilities within the
accounts (pg 41).
Mr Paul Keoghan was appointed Director of
Business Performance on 26 January 2009. In
supporting governance arrangements the Director
of Business Performance oversees all corporate
service functions including human resouces,
finance, policy development, communications and
information technology.
Register of Interests
The Risk Management Authority maintains a
Register of Members’ interests that is available on
the RMA’s website www.rmascotland.gov.uk or
direct from the RMA via telephone on 0141 278
4478 or by e-mail at info@rmascotland.gsi.gov.uk.
Audit Information
The governance statement contained within
this report provides assurance regarding the
information provided to the auditor.
Political Expenditure
The Risk Management Authority made no political
donations or incurred no political expenditure in
the financial year.
Payment Performance
In line with Scottish Government the Risk
Management Authority’s policy for the payment of
invoices, not in dispute, is within 10 day of receipt (or
the agreed contractual terms if otherwise specified).
The Risk Management Authority aims to pay 100%
of invoices, including disputed invoices once the
dispute has been settled, within these terms.
In 2014-15 The RMA paid a total of 94% of invoices
received within the terms of the payment policy,
compared with 90% in 2013-14. The RMA will
continue to investigate service improvements in
order to achieve this target in future.
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As at 31 March 2015 the value of supplier payments
outstanding at year end was £11,916.39. Supplier
payments outstanding at 31 March 2014 was
£58,396.18. All short term liabilities were classified as
trade payables.
The Risk Management Authority observes the
principles of the Better Payment Procedure Code.
Equal Opportunities
The Risk Management Authority is committed to
ensuring equal opportunities for all employees
and potential employees. The Risk Management
Authority adheres to its equal opportunities policy
in all working practices.
People with Disabilities
The Risk Management Authority’s equal
opportunities policy aims to ensure that there is
no employment discrimination on the grounds
of protected characteristics including disability
and that access to employment and career
development within the Risk Management
Authority is based solely on ability, qualifications
and suitability for the role.
Staff Involvement and Development
The Risk Management Authority is committed to
training its staff and encouraging them to identify
and attend developmental and further education
training where applicable.
During 2014-15, the Risk Management Authority
employed 15.6 FTE staff and delivered on its
commitment to support staff CPD through the
provision of twenty training courses and fourteen
conferences/seminars. This compared with 201314 where 14.0 FTE employees attended seventeen
training courses and five conferences/seminars.
The Risk Management Authority encourages
staff involvement in the business planning
processes and the on-going development of the
organisation’s work. A corporate training strategy
and individual personal development plans were
adhered to during 2014-15 for the on-going
development of all staff. During the year, the Risk
Management Authority conducted a staff survey
and held a regular cycle of staff team meetings. In
addition, all staff members are actively encouraged
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to attend corporate events such as conferences
and seminars and team-working is promoted to
increase awareness of their colleagues’ roles and
responsibilities.
Sickness Absence Data
During the year the Risk Management Authority
has seen a decrease in the level of absence due to
sickness. A total of 98 days were recorded as absence
due to sickness, representing an absence rate of
2.3%. This compares to a total absence of 67 days in
2013-4 indicating an absence rate of 1.9%.
Personal Data Incidents
There were no personal data incidents reported in
this financial period.
Pensions
All staff of the Risk Management Authority
are eligible to become members of the civil
service pension arrangements. Details regarding
pension arrangements are available within the
remuneration report.
Auditors
The annual accounts of the Risk Management
Authority are audited by an auditor appointed by
the Auditor General for Scotland in accordance
with Section 13 (c) of the Criminal Justice
(Scotland) Act 2003. External audit services for the
2014/15 accounts were at a cost of £6,500 (£6,400
in 2013/14) and no additional payments were
made to the auditor for non-audit work.
Disclosure of information to auditors
As Accountable Officer, as far as I am aware, there
is no relevant audit information of which the Risk
Management Authority’s auditors are unaware. I
have taken all reasonable steps that ought to have
been taken to make myself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Risk
Management Authority’s auditors were aware of
that information.

YVONNE GAILEY
Chief Executive and Accountable Officer
19/06/2015

Remuneration Report
The Convener and Board Members
The Convener and Board Members are public
appointments made by the Scottish Ministers
under the procedures set by the Office of the
Commissioner for Public Appointments. The
Convener is appointed for a term of 4 years which
will end on 30 September 2016.
The Convener and Board Members are paid an
annual salary which is set by the Scottish Ministers.
The salary rate is increased annually in line with
the percentage uplift agreed by the Scottish
Government Senior Salary Review Board. The
Convener and Board Member appointments are
not pensionable.
The Risk Management Authority has in place a
Remuneration Committee, current membership of
the Committee is Mr Peter Johnston, Mr Stephen
Swan and Dr Anne MacDonald. The Committee’s
function is to make recommendations to the
Board and the Scottish Ministers on a range of
pay policy matters including the level of annual
pay award for staff and the senior executives
which include the Chief Executive and Director of
Business Performance.
Statement on the policy of the remuneration
of the Chief Executive
The Board, in conjunction with the Scottish
Government, agree a salary range for the Chief
Executive and agree a starting salary within that
range. The Board further agree that the Chief
Executive’s pay would be reviewed annually and
any pay award for the Chief Executive would be
dependent upon performance. The current Chief
Executive assumed post on the 27 May 2009.
Pay awards for the Chief Executive must be
approved by the Scottish Ministers. The Chief
Executive’s performance is assessed by the
Convener of the Risk Management Authority using
a system of annual appraisal and the performance
conditions are based on achievement of the Risk
Management Authority’s annual business plan and
corporate plan objectives.
The Chief Executive is a permanent appointment
with a three month notice period. There are no
early termination payment clauses within the
contract.

The Chief Executive post is pensionable under the
civil service pension arrangements.
Appointments are based on merit and on the basis
of fair and open competition.

Statement on the policy of the remuneration
of the Director of Business Performance
The remuneration of the Director of Business
Performance is set by the Board, subject to
the Scottish Ministers’ approval. As part of the
appointment process, and in conjunction with
the Scottish Government, the Board agree salary
ranges for the Director of Business Performance
and agree starting salaries within that range.
The Director of Business Performance’s salary is
reviewed annually as part of the pay remit process
for all staff of the Risk Management Authority, with
the exception of the Chief Executive. The current
Director of Business Performance assumed post on
26 January 2009.
Pay awards for the Director of Business
Performance are dependent upon performance.
Performance is assessed by the Chief Executive
using a system of annual appraisal and
the performance conditions are based on
achievement of agreed personal objectives, based
on the Risk Management Authority’s annual
business plan and corporate plan objectives.
The Director of Business Performance is a
permanent appointment with a three month
notice period. There are no early termination
payment clauses within the contract.
The Director of Business Performance post is
pensionable under the civil service pension
arrangements.
Appointments are based on merit and on the basis
of fair and open competition.
Remuneration and Pensions
The following sections provide details of the
remuneration and pension interests of the
Convener, Board Members, Chief Executive and
Director of Business Performance.
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Remuneration
The following tables provide a breakdown
of executive and non-executive directors’

remuneration in 2013-14 and 2014-15 and have
been audited by the Risk Management Authority’s
auditors.

Executive & Non-Executive Directors’ Remuneration

2014-15
Salary (£’000)

2013-14
Salary (£’000)

5 - 10
5 - 10
5 - 10
5 - 10
5 - 10
5 - 10
5 - 10
5 - 10
–
–
65 - 70
60 - 65

5 - 10
5 - 10
5 - 10
5 - 10
5 - 10
0-5
0-5
0-5
0-5
0-5
65 - 70
60 - 65

Mr Peter Johnston, Convener
Professor Hazel Kemshall, Board Member
Dr Anne MacDonald, Board Member
Dr Joanne Wood, Board Member
Mr Emcee Chekwas , Board Member
Mr Stephen Swan, Board Member (from 1 Sept 2013)
Mr Chris Hawkes, Board Member (from 27 May 2013)
Ms Elizabeth Carmichael, Board Member (from 1 Dec 2013)
Mr James H Green, Board Member (until 30 Nov 2013)
Professor Jim McManus, Board Member (until 31 Aug 2013)
Ms Yvonne Gailey, Chief Executive
Mr Paul Keoghan, Director of Business Performance

Remuneration – Chief Executive & Directors
Basic
Benefit
Salary
in
Band	Kind
£'000
£'000

Pension
Fund
£'000

Total
£'000

Chief Executive 2014-2015

65-70

-

15-20

85-90

Chief Executive 2013-2014

65-70

-

15-20

85-90

Director of Business Performance 2014-15

60-65

-

25-30

90-95

Director of Business Performance 2013-14

60-65

-

20-25

85-90

Pension information supplied by MYCSP

Performance Related Pay
Ms Yvonne Gailey, Chief Executive
Mr Paul Keoghan, Director of Business Performance
Top to Median Staff Pay Multiples
Band of Highest Paid Director’s Total Remuneration (£ ’000)
Median Total Remuneration
Ratio
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2014-15

2013-14

–
–

–
–

2014-15

2013-14

65-70
29,091
2.3

65-70
29,760
2.2

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the
relationship between the remuneration of the
highest-paid director in their organisation and
the median remuneration of the organisation’s
workforce.
The banded remuneration of the highest-paid
director in the Risk Management Authority in the
financial year 2014-15 was £65k - £70k (2013-14,

£65k -£70k). This was 2.3 times (2013-14, 2.2) the
median remuneration of the workforce, which was
£29,091 (2013-14, £29,760).
Total remuneration includes salary, nonconsolidated performance-related pay, benefitsin-kind as well as severance payments. It does not
include employer pension contributions and the
cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.

Pension Benefits
Executive
Director

Accrued pension
and related lump
sum as at 31/3/15
Bandings of £5k

Real increase in
CETV at
CETV at
pension and
31/3/15
31/3/14
related lump sum
£’000
£’000
Bandings of £2.5k			

Real
increase
in CETV
£’000

Ms Yvonne
Gailey

10 - 15

0 - 2.5

192

164

14

Mr Paul
Keoghan

5 - 10

0 – 2.5

96

77

10

Salary
'Salary’ includes gross salary; overtime; reserved
rights to London weighting or London allowances;
recruitment and retention allowances; private
office allowances and any other allowance to the
extent that it is subject to UK taxation.
Performance Related Pay
Performance pay or bonuses are disclosed separately
in the year in which they become payable.
Benefits in kind
None were payable in the year.
Pensions
Pension benefits are provided through the Civil
Service Pension arrangements. Employees may be
in one of the statutory based ‘final salary’ defined
benefit schemes (classic, premium, classic plus,
nuvos or partnership). The Schemes are unfunded
with the cost of benefits met by monies voted
by Parliament each year. Pensions payable under
classic, premium, classic plus, and nuvos are
increased annually in line with changes in the
Consumer Prices Index. Staff can choose between
membership of premium or joining a good quality

‘money purchase’ stakeholder arrangement with
a significant employer contribution (partnership
pension account).
Employee contributions rates range from 1.5%
- 6.85% for the classic scheme and 3.5% - 8.85%
for premium, classic plus, and nuvos schemes.
Contribution rates payable are dependent upon
employee annual pensionable earnings. Benefits in
classic accrue at the rate of 1/80th of pensionable
salary for each year of service. In addition, a lump
sum equivalent to three years’ pension is payable
on retirement. For premium, benefits accrue at
the rate of 1/60th of final pensionable earnings
for each year of service. Unlike classic, there is no
automatic lump sum (but members may give up
(commute) some of their pension to provide a
lump sum). Classic plus is essentially a variation of
premium, but with benefits in respect of service
before 1 October 2002 calculated broadly as
per classic. Under nuvos, an employee’s pension
account will be credited with a proportion of
pensionable earnings in the year, the “pension
build-up factor” is currently 2.3%. The pensionable
age under nuvos is 65; if an employee draws their
pension before this time their pension will be
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reduced for early payment, and if an employee
draws their pension after this time their pension
will be increased for late payment. Under nuvos
the employee can give up part of their pension for
an optional tax free lump sum, although the HMRC
limits the amount of lump sum.
Further details about the Civil Service Pension
arrangements can be found at the website www.
civilservice.gov.uk/pensions
Cash Equivalent Transfer Values
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the
actuarially assessed capitalised value of the
pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at
a particular point in time. The benefits valued are
the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent
spouse’s pension payable from the scheme. A
CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme
or arrangement to secure pension benefits in
another pension scheme or arrangement when the
member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer
the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The
pension figures shown relate to the benefits that
the individual has accrued as a consequence of
their total membership of the pension scheme,
not just their service in a senior capacity to which
disclosure applies. The CETV figures and the other
pension details, include the value of any pension
benefit in another scheme or arrangement which
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the individual has transferred to the Civil Service
Pension arrangements and for which the CS Vote
has received a transfer payment commensurate to
the additional pension liabilities being assumed.
They also include any additional pension benefit
accrued to the member as a result of their
purchasing additional years of pension service in
the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated
within the guidelines and framework prescribed by
the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.
Real increase in CETV
This reflects the increase in CETV effectively
funded by the employer. It takes account of the
increase in accrued pension due to inflation,
contributions paid by the employee (including
the value of any benefits transferred from another
pension scheme or arrangement) and uses
common market valuation factors for the start and
end of the period.

YVONNE GAILEY
Chief Executive and Accountable Officer
19/06/2015

Statement of the Risk Management
Authority and Accountable Officer’s
Responsibilities
Under paragraph 13 of the Criminal
Justice (Scotland) Act 2003, the
Scottish Ministers have directed the
Risk Management Authority to prepare
for each financial year a statement of
accounts in the form and on the basis
set out in the Accounts Direction.
The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis
and must give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Risk Management Authority, and of
its income and expenditure, recognised gains and
losses, and cash flows for the financial year.
In preparing the accounts the Accountable Officer
is required to comply with the requirements of the
Government Financial Reporting Manual and in
particular to:

The Accountable Officer for the Scottish
Government Justice Department designated the
Risk Management Authority’s Chief Executive, Ms
Yvonne Gailey, as the Accountable Officer for the
Risk Management Authority. Responsibilities as
Accountable Officer, including the responsibility
for the propriety and regularity of the public
finances for which the Accountable Officer is
answerable, for the keeping of proper records and
for safeguarding the Risk Management Authority’s
assets, are set out in the Memorandum to
Accountable Officers of Other Public Bodies.
The Accountable Officer is responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial information included on the Risk
Management Authority’s website. Legislation
in the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.

	observe the Accounts Direction issued by
the Scottish Ministers, including the relevant
accounting and disclosure requirements,
and apply suitable accounting policies on a
consistent basis;
	make judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;
	state whether applicable accounting
standards as set out in the Financial Reporting
Manual have been followed, and disclose
and explain any material departures in the
financial statements; and
	prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

RMA Annual Report and Accounts 2014-2015

41

Governance Statement
Scope of responsibility
As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility
for maintaining a sound system of internal
control that supports the achievement of the
Risk Management Authority’s policies, aims and
objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds
and the Risk Management Authority’s assets for
which I am personally responsible, in accordance
with the responsibilities assigned to me in the
Sponsorship Framework.
As Accountable Officer I have specific
responsibility in relation to:
	planning, performance management and
monitoring;
	advising the Risk Management Authority;
	managing risk and resources; and
	accounting for the Risk Management
Authority’s activities.
The Scottish Public Finance Manual (SPFM)
is issued by the Scottish Ministers to provide
guidance to the Scottish Government and other
relevant bodies on the proper handling and
reporting of public funds. It sets out the relevant
statutory, parliamentary and administrative
requirements, emphasizes the need for economy,
efficiency and effectiveness, and promotes good
practice and high standards of propriety.
The Governance Framework
The Risk Management Authority’s governance
framework is clearly defined within the context
of the Sponsorship Framework which specifically
addresses:
	the functions, duties and powers of the Risk
Management Authority;
aims, objectives and targets;
	the responsibilities of the Convener, the Board
and the Chief Executive;
planning, budgeting and control;
external accountability;
staff management;
	reviewing the Risk Management Authority’s
role; and
key financial and operating procedures.
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The governance framework is further supported
by a Code of Conduct for Board Members and a
Corporate Risk Management Strategy.
The Board
The Board has corporate responsibility for ensuring
the Risk Management Authority fulfils the aims
and objectives set by Scottish Ministers and
for promoting the efficient and effective use of
staff and other resources in accordance with the
principles of Best Value. The Board is supported by
an Accreditation Committee, Appeals Committee,
Risk Management Plan Approval Committee,
Research & Training Committee, Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee.
During 2014-15 the Board convened on seven
occasions, and on each occasion the meetings
were quorate and a set of minutes produced
to record all agreed actions and decisions. At
each meeting Members were requested to
submit any declarations of interest and gifts and
hospitality, with a full record made on the minutes
in compliance with the Code of Conduct. In
accordance with the Risk Management Authority’s
Publication Scheme, edited versions of these
minutes are available on the website, www.
rmascotland.gov.uk.
The Risk Management Authority has a Board
Induction Programme in place which includes
attendance at CIPFA On Board Training and a
comprehensive Board Member’s Handbook.

Risk Management
All bodies subject to the requirements of the
SPFM must operate a risk management strategy in
accordance with relevant guidance issued by Scottish
Ministers. The general principles for a successful risk
management strategy are set out in the SPFM.
Staff are trained or equipped to manage risk in a way
appropriate to their authority and duties. The Risk
Management Authority communicates its risk register
to staff and has a framework for staff to report risk.
The Risk Management Authority has a documented
risk management strategy which specifies the roles
of the Board, the Audit Committee and the Chief

Executive and details the process of risk identification
in relation to the Risk Management Authority’s
objectives. The strategy also details the process of risk
categorisation and the approval and review structure
for the Risk Register by the Audit Committee and
Board.
Risk Management is embedded into corporate
processes with the risk register reviewed regularly
and reported to the Audit Committee meeting. The
risk register is reviewed in conjunction with the
preparation of Corporate and Business Plans.
Assessment of Corporate Governance and
Risk Management Arrangements
As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for
overseeing the Risk Management Authority’s
corporate governance arrangements including
compliance with generally accepted best practice
principles and relevant guidance. In addition, I have
responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
Risk Management Authority’s risk management
arrangements and system of internal control. My
review of the effectiveness of these systems has
been informed by the following key processes:
	the management team within the
Risk Management Authority who have
responsibility for the development and
maintenance of governance, performance and
internal controls frameworks;
	the Board who has responsibility for receiving,
monitoring and commenting on regular
management reports on governance matters,
performance outcomes and risk management;
	the work of the Risk Management Authority’s
Audit Committee as delegated by the Board
which includes ongoing review of the
Authority’s external assurance functions and
internal assessments on governance, risk and
Best Value;
	the work of the internal auditors, who
submit to the Risk Management Authority’s
Audit Committee regular reports which
include the independent and objective
opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness
of the organisation’s systems of internal
control together with recommendations for
improvement;
	comments made by the external auditors in
their management letters and other reports.

	the work of the Committees charged with
responsibility for the governance and
performance in the areas encompassing Risk
Management Plan Approval, Research
& Training and Accreditation.
My review and assessment has been informed
directly by the following key processes which have
operated continuously and effectively during the
course of 2014-15:
	meetings of the Board to consider, policies,
plans and the strategic direction of the Risk
Management Authority;
	a programme of planned audits performed
by the internal auditors with reports being
presented to the Accountable Officer and the
Audit Committee;
	action plans are in place to correct any
weaknesses identified by internal audit and
these are monitored by the Audit Committee;
	certificates of assurance are provided by the
Director of Business Performance and Head
of Internal Audit to support my review of the
system of internal control;
	committee meetings;
	annual committee performance reports;
	regular meetings with staff on business plan
objectives and risk identification;
	a system of key performance and risk
indicators;
	a risk register for the Authority.
As Accountable Officer I can confirm that I am
fully content with the effectiveness of the Risk
Management Authority’s existing arrangements
to ensure appropriate standards of corporate
governance and effective risk management. I can
also confirm that there were no significant control
weakness or identified lapses in data security
during 2014-15.

YVONNE GAILEY
Chief Executive and Accountable Officer
19/06/2015
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the members of the Risk
Management Authority, the Auditor
General for Scotland and the Scottish
Parliament.
II have audited the financial statements of the
Risk Management Authority for the year ended
31 March 2015 under the Criminal Justice
(Scotland) Act 2003. The financial statements
comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure, the Statement of Financial Position,
the Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement of
Changes in Taxpayers' Equity and the related
notes. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and
as interpreted and adapted by the 2014/15
Government Financial Reporting Manual (the
2014/15 FReM).
This report is made solely to the parties to whom it
is addressed in accordance with the Public Finance
and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and for
no other purpose. In accordance with paragraph
125 of the Code of Audit Practice approved by the
Auditor General for Scotland, I do not undertake
to have responsibilities to members or officers, in
their individual capacities, or to third parties.
Respective responsibilities of Accountable
Officer and auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of
Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities the
Accountable Officer is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view,
and is also responsible for ensuring the regularity
of expenditure and income. My responsibility is
to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) as required by the Code of Audit Practice
approved by the Auditor General for Scotland.
Those standards require me to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for
Auditors. I am also responsible for giving an
opinion on the regularity of expenditure and
income in accordance with the Public Finance and
Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000.
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Scope of the audit of the financial
statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.
This includes an assessment of: whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the body’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by the
Accountable Officer; and the overall presentation
of the financial statements. It also involves
obtaining evidence about the regularity of
expenditure and income. In addition, I read all
the financial and non-financial information in the
annual report to identify material inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements and to
identify any information that is apparently
materially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me
in the course of performing the audit. If I become
aware of any apparent material misstatements,
irregularities, or inconsistencies I consider the
implications for my report.
Opinion on financial statements
In my opinion the financial statements:
	give a true and fair view in accordance with
the Criminal Justice (Scotland) Act 2003 and
directions made thereunder by the Scottish
Ministers of the state of the body’s affairs as at
31 March 2015 and of its net expenditure for
the year then ended;
	have been properly prepared in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
as interpreted and adapted by the 2014/15
FReM; and
	have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Criminal Justice
(Scotland) Act 2003 and directions made
thereunder by the Scottish Ministers.

Opinion on regularity
In my opinion in all material respects the
expenditure and income in the financial
statements were incurred or applied in accordance
with any applicable enactments and guidance
issued by the Scottish Ministers.
Opinion on other prescribed matters
In my opinion:
	the part of the Remuneration Report to
be audited has been properly prepared
in accordance with the Criminal Justice
(Scotland) Act 2003 and directions made
thereunder by the Scottish Ministers; and
	the information given in the Strategic Report
and Directors' Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which I am required to report by
exception
I am required to report to you if, in my opinion:
	adequate accounting records have not been
kept; or
	the financial statements and the part of the
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records; or
	I have not received all the information and
explanations I require for my audit; or
	the Governance Statement does not comply
with guidance from the Scottish Ministers.
I have nothing to report in respect of these
matters.

Asif A Haseeb
Audit Scotland
8 Nelson Mandela Place
Glasgow
G2 1BT
19/06/2015

RMA Annual Report and Accounts 2014-2015

45

Financial Statement and Notes
Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
For the year ended 31 March 2015

2014-15
	Notes
£’000
Expenditure			
Staff costs
2
816
Other admin costs
3
225
		
1,041

2013-14
£’000
Restated
680
234
914

Income			
Income from activities
4
(15)
(11)
Net operating costs		
1,026
903
			
The results for the year derive from the ordinary activities of Risk Management Authority, all of which are
continuing.

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2015

2014-15
	Notes
£’000
Non-current assets			
Property, plant and equipment
5
53
Intangible assets
6
Total non-current assets		
53

2013-14
£’000
Restated
51
51

Current Assets			
Trade and other receivables
8
10
Cash and cash equivalents
9
560
Total current assets		
570

20
559
579

Total assets		

623

630

Current liabilities			
Trade and other payables
10
231
Total current liabilities		
231

333
333

392

293

Non-current liabilities			
Provisions
11
60
Total non-current liabilities		
60

60
60

Non current assets plus net current assets		

Total liabilities		

291

393

Assets less liabilities		

332

237

Taxpayers Equity			
General Fund - Unallocated		
267
General Fund – Allocated for EEPICS Project		
65
Total taxpayers equity		
332

172
65
237

Signed on behalf of the Risk Management Authority

YVONNE GAILEY
Chief Executive and Accountable Officer
19/06/2015
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2015
2014-15
2013-14
	Notes
£’000
£’000
Cash flows from operating activities			
Restated
Net operating cost
SoCNE
(1,026)
(903)
Adjustments for non-cash transactions 			
Depreciation
5,6
24
22
			
Movements in working capital 			
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
8
10
13
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
10
(102)
67
Increase in provisions
11
12
Net cash outflow from operating activities 		
(1,094)
(789)
					
Cash flows from investing activities 			
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
5,6
(26)
(65)
Net cash flow from investing activities 		
(26)
(65)
					
Cash flows from financing activities 			
Scottish Government Grant 		
1,121
970
Net cash flow from financing 		
1,121
970
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		
1
			
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
9
559
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
9
560
			
Net change in cash and cash equivalents		
1

116
443
559
116

Statement of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2015

2014-15
	Notes
£’000
General Fund 			
Balance at 1 April		
237
Net operating cost for the year		
(1,026)
Grant from Scottish Government 		
1,121
Balance at 31 March 		
332

2013-14
£’000
Restated
170
(903)
970
237
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Notes to the Accounts

For the year ended 31 March 2014
1. Accounting policies
Statement of accounting policies
These Accounts have been prepared in accordance
with the Government Financial Reporting Manual
(FReM) issued by HM Treasury, which follows
International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted
by the EU, IFRIC Interpretations and the Companies
Act 2006 to the extent that they are meaningful and
appropriate to the public sector. They have been
applied consistently in dealing with items that are
considered material in relation to the accounts.
The preparation of the accounts in conformity with
IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
accounts, are disclosed in section (h) below.
(a) Accounting Convention
The accounts are prepared under the historical cost
convention modified to account for the revaluation
of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and, where material, current asset investments and
inventories to fair value as determined by the relevant
accounting standard.
(b) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
The threshold for capitalisation of Property, plant
and equipment is £1,000. Amortised historic cost
has been used as a proxy for fair value of plant and
machinery.
Property, plant and equipment is amortised at rates
calculated to write them down to estimated residual
value on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful lives as follows:
Buildings
Furniture & Fittings
Equipment
Information Technology
Software

over 10 yrs
over 5 yrs
over 5 yrs
over 3 yrs
over 3 yrs

(c) Intangible Assets
The threshold for capitalisation of Intangible Assets
is £1,000. Amortised historic cost has been used as a
proxy for fair value of plant and machinery.
Intangible Assets are amortised at rates calculated
to write them down to estimated residual value on a
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives of
three years.
(d) Receivables
All material amounts outstanding at 31 March 2015
have been brought into account irrespective of when
actual payments were made.
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(e) Payables
All material amounts outstanding at 31 March 2015
have been brought into account irrespective of when
actual payments were made.
(f) Income and Government Grants
All expenditure of the Risk Management Authority
is met from funds advanced by the Scottish
Government within an approved allocation. Cash
drawn down to fund expenditure within this
approved allocation is credited to the general fund.
All income that is not classed as funding is recognised
in the period in which it is receivable. Funding for
the acquisition of general non-current assets received
from the Scottish Government is credited to the
general fund. Funding received from any source
for the acquisition of specific assets is credited to
the government grant reserve and released to the
operating cost statement over the life of the asset.
All income that is not classed as funding is recognised
in the period in which it is receivable. In particular:
• Income from the sale of goods is recognised when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the purchaser and it is probable
that economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to the Risk
Management Authority; and
• Income from the provision of services is recognised
when the Risk Management Authority can
measure reliably the percentage of completion of
the transaction and it is probable that economic
benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the Risk Management
Authority.
(g) Operating Leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to the revenue account over the term of the lease.
(h) Provisions
The Risk Management Authority provides for legal or
constructive obligations that are of uncertain timing
or amount at the balance sheet date on the basis
of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time
value of money is significant, the estimated cash flows
are discounted using the discount rate prescribed by
HM Treasury.
(I) Prior year adjustment
During 2014/15 it was identified that income of
£10,000 relating to 2013/14 had not been recognised
in the prior year financial statements and expenditure
had been overstated by £3,000 due to an over-accrual
at 31 March 2014. An asset with a net book value
of £5,000 was also recognised in the Statement of
Financial Position as at 31 March 2014 that did not
satisfy the asset recognition criteria set out in IAS16
- Property, Plant and Equipment. In accordance with
IAS8 - Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting
Estimates and Errors, these misstatements have been
corrected by restating the comparative amounts for
the prior year in the 2014/15 financial statements.

2. Staff Costs
2014-15
£’000

2013-14
£’000

50
50

48
48

2014-15
£’000
598
49
119
766

2013-14
£’000
501
43
88
632

816

680

No.
8
18

No.
8
14

2014-15
		
£’000
			
Accommodation 		
67
Office equipment and furniture		
4
Research and consultancy		
9
IT Support		
39
Training 		
11
Legal Fees & Expenses		
5
Supplies & Services		
15
Stationery 		
3
Catering and Hospitality		
1
Expenses and Travel		
24
Other Office Costs		
10
Internal Audit Fee		
6
External Audit Fee		
7
Depreciation		
24
Total		
225

2013-14
£’000
Restated
78
4
(3)
34
7
5
15
3
3
17
30
13
6
22
234

		
Authority Members		
Salary		
Social Security Costs		
Total Authority Members		

Administrative staff		
Wages and salaries		
Social Security costs		
Pension costs		
Total administrative Staff		
		
Total Staff Costs		
		
Average number of employees during the year: 		
Authority Members 		
Staff 		
3. Other Administrative Costs

4. Income from Activities
2014-15
		
£’000
			
Event and conference income 		
Staff Secondee Recharge		
15
Total		
15

2013-14
£’000
Restated
(1)
(10)
(11)

RMA Annual Report and Accounts 2014-2015

49

5. Property, plant and equipment
Buildings
Equipment Information
			 Technology
£’000
£’000
£’000

Furniture &
Fittings
£’000

Total
£’000

Cost
Balance at 1 April 2014 restated
Additions
Disposals
Balance at 31 March 2015

38
38
-

32
32

29
25
54

65
1
66

164
26
38
152

Depreciation
Balance at 1 April 2014 restated
Charge for year
Disposals
Balance at 31 March 2015

38
38
-

32
32

23
11
34

20
13
33

113
24
38
99

NBV at 31 March 2015
NBV at 31 March 2014 restated

-

-

20
6

33
45

53
51

Analysis of asset financing:
Owned
Finance leased
NBV at 31 March 2015

-

-

20
20

33
33

53
53

6. Intangible Assets
				
				
Cost
Balance at 1 April 2014				
Additions 				
Disposals				
Balance at 31 March 2015				

Software
£’000

Total
£’000

106
106

106
106

Depreciation
Balance at 1 April 2014				
Charge for year 				
Disposals 				
Balance at 31 March 2015				

106
106

106
106

NBV at 31 March 2015				
NBV at 31 March 2014				

-

-
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7. Financial Instruments
As the cash requirements of Risk Management Authority are met through grant funding, financial instruments
play a more limited role in creating and managing risk than in a non public sector body. The majority of
financial instruments relate to contracts to buy non-financial items in line with Risk Management Authority’s
expected purchase and usage requirements, and therefore Risk Management Authority is therefore exposed
to little credit, liquidity or market risk.

8. Trade and other Receivables
2014-15
		
£’000
			
Amounts falling due within one year: 		
Other receivables		
10
Total receivable within 1 year		
10

Central Government 		
Other Government Bodies		
External		
Total		

2013-14
£’000
Restated
20
20

2014-15
2013-14
2		
8
20
10
20

9. Cash and cash equivalents
2014-15
£’000
559
1
560

2013-14
£’000
443
116
559

556
4
560

554
5
559

2014-15
			
		
£’000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Accruals and deferred income		
231
Total due within one year		
231

2013-14
Restated
£’000

2014-15
147
16
68
231

2013-14
201
11
121
333

		
Balance at 1 April 		
Net change in cash and cash equivalent balances		
Balance at 31 March		
		
The following balances at 31 March were held at: 		
Government Banking Service		
Corporate cash account		
Balance at 31 March		

10. Trade and other payables		

Central Government 		
Other Government Bodies		
External		
Total		

333
333
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11. Provisions for liabilities and charges
The lease for premises at St James’ House expired on 28 February 2014. As part of the lease agreement the
Risk Management Authority has an obligation to cover dilapidations and reinstatement costs that may be
required at the end of the lease. As such a provision has been established, based on the best estimate of the
present value of expenditure required to settle the obligation. During the year the cost of the dilapidations
was estimated at £60,000. Accordingly, the provision has been increased to this level over the term of the
lease.

		
		
Balance at 1 April
		
Provided in year		
Balance at 31 March		

2014-15
£’000
60
0
60

2013-14
£’000
48
12
60

12. Related Party Transactions
The Scottish Government Justice Department is the sponsor department of the Risk Management Authority.
The Scottish Government Justice Department is regarded as a related party with which there have been
various material transactions during the year. None of the Authority members or key managerial staff has
undertaken any material transactions with the Risk Management Authority during the year.

13. Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
The operating lease contains provision to return the premises occupied by the Risk Management Authority
to the same condition as when the lease was entered upon expiry of the lease. The costs for completing this
dilapidation is expected to be £60,000. Note 11 refers to this provision in more detail.

14. Commitments under leases
The total value of commitments under operating leases is £168,740.
Obligations under operating leases comprise:
		
		
Buildings:
Not later than one year		
Later than one year and not later than five years		
Later than five years		
Payments due under operating leases relate to the lease of office premises.
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31 March
2015
£’000

31 March
2014
£’000

46
123
-

46
169
-

15. Segment Reporting
All expenditure, assets and liabilities disclosed with the accounts relate solely to the delivery of the Authority's
statutory functions.
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Results against Business Plan
2014-15 Performance Targets
STRATEGIC AIM 1: The RMA will advance a shared framework of effective
and ethical risk assessment and risk management practice
Approach:

Details:

A1.1
Inform policy decisions relating to
risk assessment and management
with learning from national and
international research and practice

•	Contributed to the development of MAPPA guidance and
made submissions to the consultation on extending MAPPA to
other categories of offender
•	Published the evaluation of LS/CMI In Practice National
Report
•	Established a data sharing agreement with Scottish
Government’s Justice Analytical Services and MHS to conduct
research on reconviction data, which will facilitate a study of
the application of the LS/CMI
•	Working in partnership with stakeholders, provided input to:
– P
 olice Scotland Offender Management Working Group
– C
 entre for Youth and Criminal Justice Managing High Risk
Champions Group
– Forensic Network
•	Established a consistent format of Risk Management Plan for
those who pose a risk of serious harm. This is consistent with
the tiered approach to assessment used by Criminal Justice
Social Work (within LS/CMI) and also the Risk Management
Plan for those subject to an Order for Lifelong Restriction.

A1.2
Promote the implementation of
evidence based practices through
the development of learning, quality
assurance and evaluation resources

•	Developed a training resource to support CJSW undertake a
formulation and risk management plan for those who pose a
risk of serious harm.
•	Undertook a field-test event for criminal justice social work
practitioners (CJSW)
•	Supported the development and implementation of Version
3 of the LS/CMI system, to incorporate functionality that
would assist Prison based staff utilise the consistent Risk
Management Plan for those subject to an OLR
•	Supported the implementation of Moving Forward Making
Changes (MFMC), with quality assurance mechanisms
developed, clinical support established and contributions
made to the national working group
•	Contributed to the evaluation of the TARL (Throughcare
Assessment Release Licence)
•	Supported and advised Police Scotland in their delivery of a
risk practice course

A1.3
Develop and publish standards and
guidelines

• P
 ublication of revised Standards & Guidelines for
Risk Assessment reprioritised to 2015/16
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STRATEGIC AIM 2: The RMA will assure the quality of practice in the risk
assessment and management of offenders subject to an Order for Lifelong
Restriction (OLR)
Approach:

Details:

A2.1
Administer the accreditation process and evaluate
performance to ensure assessors have regard to
our standards and guidelines and comply with the
code of conduct

•
•
•
•

A2.2
Support and guide lead authorities in the
preparation of risk management plans

• D
 eveloped new reporting processes for
risk management planning and annual
implementation, streamlining arrangements by
removing the need for two separate reports
•	Undertook work to make the OLR template
consistent with the LS/CMI electronic system.
This enables further efficiencies for the Lead
Authorities that are able to use this system,
promotes consistency between custody and
community, and assists at the point of transition
to the community

A2.3
Ensure risk management plans comply with
legislation and have regard to our standards and
guidelines

• S upported HMP Glenochil during a change of
Case Managers
• Provided relevant feedback and guidance to
Case Managers to ensure RMPs had regard to
standards and guidelines

A2.4
Evaluate the implementation of approved risk
management plans

• D
 eveloped an addendum to the Standards and
Guidelines for Risk Management, including the
addition of a progress record to enable Lead
Authorities to evidence/record deliverables and
change. This will be implemented in 2015-16

A2.5
Collate and analyse data on the application of the
order for lifelong restriction to inform policy and
practice

•	Engaged with key partners including the Scottish
Government, COPFS, Courts Service, Police
Scotland and accredited assessors to consider
OLR policy intent and legislation
•	Implemented a case management system for
OLR case files
•	Delivered a presentation to the Edinburgh branch
of SASO on the realities of the OLR
•	Delivered a training input on the OLR to new
members of the Parole Board
•	Evaluated annual implementation reports and
provided relevant feedback to Lead Authorities

 eld a CPD meeting for Accredited Assessors
H
6 individuals accredited as assessors
Quality assurance of RARs exceeded the agreed KPI
The Accreditation Committee provided guidance
to an assessor to improve the presentation of
reports
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STRATEGIC AIM 3: The RMA will ensure our decisions are defensible and
our processes are administered with integrity
Approach:

Details:

A3.1
Continually improve decision making processes to
ensure good governance, transparency and fairness

• Implemented staff counselling service
• Conducted a staff engagement survey
•	Received approval for the RMA’s Records
Management Plan from the Keeper of the
Records

A3.2
Manage resources effectively and promote a
learning culture in all that we do

•	Established lines of communication with
Scottish Procurement for support with complex
procurement projects
•	Established appropriate estate management
duties and functions, and developed desktop
instructions to aid business continuity
•	Undertook an appraisal and cost analysis of
current corporate IT systems

A3.3
Develop our communication systems to enhance
dissemination of our work and collaboration with
stakeholders

•	Conducted an appraisal of the RMA website and
commissioned the move to a new platform, with
an anticipated go live date of July 2015
•	Identified new secure digital method of
communication with Board members, which
will be implemented in 2015-16

A3.4
Continually develop and enhance our performance
management systems

•	Implemented new complaints handling
procedure
•	Developed an implementation plan for auditor
recommendations
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OLR Data: Punishment parts
according to grouped index offences
Assault
Rape
Attempt Murder
Breach
Lewd and Libidinous
Contravention Sexual Offences Act
Child Sex Offences
Robbery
Wilful Fire-Raising
Theft
Possession of a Firearm
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

Punishment part of sentence of up to five years according to broad offence category

Assault
Rape
Attempt Murder
Contravention Sexual Offences Act
Breach
Conspiracy
Child Sex Offences
Various sex offences
Sodomy
Hame-Sucken
Culpable Homicide
Civic Gov. (Scotland) Act
0

2

4

6

8
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14

16
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22

24

Punishment part of sentence of up five to nine years according to broad offence category

Assault
Rape
Contravention Sexual Offences Act
0

2

4

6

8

10

Punishment part of sentence of ten years or more according to broad offence category
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Acronym	Full Term	Definition
COPFS

Crown Office Procurator Fiscal
Service

Service responsible for the prosecution
of crime in Scotland, the investigation
of sudden or suspicious deaths, and the
investigation of complaints against the
police

FRAME

Framework for Risk Assessment,
Management and Evaluation

RMA-developed structured and shared
approach to risk practice

LS/CMI

Level of Service / Case
Management Inventory

Assessment that measures the risk and
need factors of offenders, and case
management tool

MAPPA

Multi Agency Public Protection
Arrangement

Community Management of Offenders

MFMC

Moving Forward: Making Changes

Cognitive-behavioural programme
designed to address sexual offending
behaviour

NDPB

Non-Departmental Public Body

A public organisation that is self-governing
but accountable to and funded by
Government

OLR

Order for Lifelong Restriction

Sentence providing for lifelong
management of high risk violent and
sexual offenders. Requires implementation
and review of an RMA approved risk
management plan for offenders in
custody and in the community. Includes
a punishment part, spending minimum
period in secure custody

RAO

Risk Assessment Order

Issued by the High Court regarding an
offender who is being considered for an
Order for Lifelong Restriction

RAR

Risk Assessment Report

Produced by an RMA Accredited Assessor
on behalf of the High Court for someone
who is subject to a Risk Assessment Order
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THE RMA: 10 YEARS ON

THE RMA: 10 YEARS ON
2000/01: Scottish Ministers
accept the recommendations
of the committee on Serious
Violent and Sexual Offenders
chaired by Lord MacLean.
2003/04: The Criminal Justice
(Scotland) Act 2003 establishes
the RMA.
2004/05: RMA implemented as
a pubic body. Board appointed
in 2004 led by the Convener
Mr Robert Winter. Staff
appointments completed Sept
2005 including appointment
of Chief Executive Professor
Roisin Hall.
2006/07: Scottish Ministers
establish the Risk Assessment
and Minimisation (Accreditation
Scheme) (Scotland) Order
2006. The scheme supports
the RMA in the accreditation
of assessors to prepare risk
assessment reports as directed
by the High Court.
2006/07: Level of Service
Case Management Inventory
(LSCMI) developed for use in
Scotland.
RMA commences validation
study of the use of risk
instrument Risk Matrix 2000 in
Scotland
2006/07: Following widespread
consultation with stakeholders,
the RMA publish Standards &
Guidelines for Risk Assessment.
2006/07: RMA hold conference
on Effective Risk Management.
2006/07: High Court issues
its first Order for Lifelong
Restriction sentence
2006/07: RMA publish the
Risk Assessment Tools
Evaluation Directory (RATED).
This document provides
information on the attributes
of a number of risk assessment
tools and associated
techniques and followed a
review and evaluation of risk
assessment tools.

2007/08: RMA support the
implementation of MultiAgency Public Protection
Arrangements in Scotland.
2007/08: RMA publish
Standards and Guidelines
for Risk Management. The
Standards & Guidelines for
Risk Management support the
risk management of offenders
subject to an OLR.
2008/09: RMA commences
project to evaluate the use of
STABLE 2007 and ACUTE 2007
(risk assessment tools for sex
offenders) in Scotland.
2008/09: RMA facilitate
LSCMI training for trainers,
to develop first cohort for
implementation. Delivered
by authors Don Andrews and
Steve Wormith.
June 2008: RMA holds its
third Annual Conference
in Glasgow on the theme
“Assessing and Managing
Violence Risk”. The event
attracts over 160 delegates
from across the UK.
2008/09: RMA commences
work on the development of
FRAME - Framework for Risk
Assessment and Management
Effectiveness. This
development was in response
to the Scottish Government
and agencies’ request for the
development of a screening
tool for the assessment of
violent risk, which research
had shown to be unavailable.
2009/10: RMA support
the development of the
Memorandum of Procedure on
restricted patients;
RMA host a knowledge
exchange seminar with the
Swedish Board of Forensic
Medicine;
Deliver LS/CMI training for
Criminal Justice Social Work
staff .

July 2011: RMA publish
the FRAME Policy Paper,
establishing fundamental
principles and standards to
facilitate a consistent approach
to risk assessment and
management.
2010-11: RMA host two
international conferences
to consider principles and
values in multi-agency risk
management and risk practice.
Attended by 265 delegates
from across the UK, Ireland,
Portugal and Sweden.
2011/12: Enhancing Effective
Practice In Community
Supervision (EEPICS)
is developed by the
RMA, commissioning the
development of structured
community supervision
techniques for a pilot
programme in Scotland.
2011/12: RMA support the
implementation of LSCMI
across Scotland. This included
conducting quality assurance
on the training provision to
1,000 practitioners, support
to the IT version of LSCMI and
train the trainer events.
2011/12: RMA host conference
on progressing understanding
of women’s offending, sharing
knowledge on the advances
made in evidence-based and
gender informed practice.
2012/13: RMA publish
an evaluation of the
implementation of the
SA07 risk assessment tool
in Scotland to inform
the adoption of quality
improvement measures
RMA maintain a cohort of
17 assessors accredited to
undertake Risk Assessment
Reports to assist the High
Court in its consideration of
whether an Order for Lifelong
Restriction should be imposed.

2012/13: National FRAME
Implementation Group
(FIG) established, with
representatives from the
Scottish Government,
ADSW, ACPOS, SPS, Forensic
Network and the Care
Inspectorate to take forward
the improvement initiatives of
FRAME.

Acronym

Full Term

Definition

RMP

Risk Management Plan

Required by law, for an offender subject to
an Order for Lifelong Restriction, approved
by the Risk Management Authority. A Risk
Management Plan is prepared by the lead
authority

SA07

Stable and Acute 2007

Risk Assessment Tool

2012/13: RMA seminars held
to support the improvement
initiatives of SA07. Sessions
were delivered on behalf of
the RMA by Professor Don
Grubin.
2013/14: The Court imposes
100th OLR sentence
2013/14: RMA contributes to
Council of Europe publication
on the management of serious
violent and sexual offenders
titled ‘Recommendations
concerning Dangerous
Offenders’, which was adopted
by the European Committee on
Crime Problems.
2013/14: RMA publish revised
Standards & Guidelines for Risk
Management.
2013/14: RMA introduce an
online version of the Risk
Assessment Tools Evaluation
Directory (RATED), an audit of
61 risk assessment tools.
2014/15: RMA contribute
to MAPPA guidance,
document set and multiagency risk management
plan format.
2014/15: Agreement made
with Scottish Government and
MHS to share data to inform
an international study of the
LS/CMI – the first jurisdiction
outwith Canada and North
America to undertake such
research.

Over the past 10 years, the RMA participated and contributed to national working groups and committees including National Advisory Board
on Offender Management, Centre for Youth and Criminal Justice Managing High Risk Champions Group, Forensic Network, Police Scotland
Offender Management Working Group, LSCMI Working Group, Effective Community Disposals, National Outcomes and Standards Advisory Group,
ACPOS Offender Management Working Groups, MAPPA Working Group, Training Services Provider Group and more. The RMA would like to thank
stakeholders for their support, collaboration and participation over the past ten years, and we look forward to working with our stakeholders in
the future to continue the progress made to date.
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